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VWe are a diversified
ndustrial company

One of the top furniture and household goods groups in
Europe, and the largest in Africa and the Pacific Rim, the
Steinhoff group manufactures, warehouses, distributes and
retails a wide range of household goods (mainly bedding,
case goods and lounge furniture) as well as raw materials
used primarily in manufacturing household goods.

©

o

o

[e]

(o]

Group revenues increased by mm& in euros and MW\A m&u in rand
QQ& growth in headline earnings in euros and @@&u in rand

O
Headline earnings per share increased by @@ Av in euros

O

and N@Nu in rand

Strong regionally independent balance sheets support future growth
E \_ | K_j U_:_Oj cash generated by operations

O
Distribution to shareholders increased by @@ Nu

to @O O@j.ﬁm per share

Steinhoff m

International Holdings Ltd
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OUR SUCCESS .

Steinhoff Annual Report 2005

|

The values that underpin our success are
responsibility, mnnoc?mgzg integrity, quality,
diversity and relationships based on our

respect for each other and the environment in
which we operate. _

accountabilit
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Our fully-diversified industrial business

RAW MATERIALS _ Access to a reliable supply of quality raw

materials at competitive prices is critical for
_ sourcing, ontime deliveries and distribution.

Our diverse product range and route to

MANUFACTURING market of successful trade and consumer
brands and products, supplemented by
products sourced from third parties,
remains a strategic advantage.

Short lead times, accurate deliveries and
optimal quantities and superior after-sale

—uom_mn_.._ﬂm. />\>_Nm_|_ocm_zm\ service provide our customers with a
RETAIL AND DISTRIBUTION competitive advantage. The ultimate aim is

to give the consumer the right product at
the right price.

4 Steinhoff Annual Report 2005
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Executive directorate
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Bruno Ewald Steinhoff (67)*

Bruno, founder of the group, currently serves as executive chairman, with specific responsibility for strategic development. After
studying industrial business, Bruno started his furniture trade and distribution business in June 1964 in Westerstede, Germany.

In 1971, he expanded into manutacturing with the first upholstery factory in Remels. During the 1980s and 1990s, Biuno acquired
interests in central and eastern Europe and also ventured into South Africa in a joint venture with Claas Daun involving
Gommagomma Holdings. He has 41 years of experience in the furniture business and more than 31 years’ manufacturing
experience. Bruno also serves on the regional board of Commerzbank for Northern Germany and PSG Bank in South Africa.

Markus Johannes Jooste (44)#ae BAcc, CA(SA)

in 2000, Markus was appointed group managing director of Steinhoff International and chairman of Steinhoff Africa. In 1988,
Markus joined Gommagomma Holdings as financial director and became involved in merging the southern African furniture
operation with the extensive interests of Bruno Steinhoff. Markus was appointed as executive director and took responsibility for
the European operations of Steinhoff International and also for directing the group’s international marketing and financial
disciplines. Currently, Markus serves as chief executive officer and also serves on the boards of the following listed companies:
Unitrans Limited (member of the remuneration committee), PSG Group Limited (member of the remuneration committee),

KAP International Limited and Homestyle Group plc. He is a non-executive director of The Racing Association.

Johannes Henoch Neethling van der Merwe (46) BAcc, BCompt (Hons), CA(SA)

Jan has been chief financial officer since November 2003. Jan previously led the Steinhoff International group services team.

He has wide experience in most of the operational aspects of the group’s business. A qualified chartered accountant, Jan entered
the industry as a buyer for Gommagomma Holdings (now Steinhoff Africa) in 1989. Since then, he has held several positions,
including managing director of Steinhoff Furniture, Cape Town. He was appointed managing director of Steinhoff Africa group
services in 1999 and international group services in 2001. Jan also serves on several boards including Unitrans Limited (member of
the audit and risk committee) and Homestyle Group plc as a non-executive director.

Fredrik Johannes Nel (46) BCompt (Hons), CA(SA)
Frikkie was appointed financial director of Steinhoff International in 1998 and also acted as company secretary for the group.
He has overall responsibility as the company’s financial director. After serving as an accountant with a private company, he joined

Gommagomma {now Steinhoff Africa) as financial manager in 1989, becoming financial director in 1990. He qualified as a chartered
accountant in 1993,




Maree van der Merwe (47) BComm, LLB

Danie was elected to the Steinhoff international Holdings board in 1999 and is group managing director for Steinhoff Africa.
Danie was admitted as an attorney of the High Court of South Africa in 1986. He practiced as an attorney, gaining experience in
the commercial and labour law field and, in 1990, joined the Roadway Transport group. He was instrumental in developing the
strategic direction and growth of this group. In early 1998, following the merger of Roadway with Steinhoff Africa, Danie joined
Steinhoff. Danie currently serves on the boards of Unitrans Limited, PG Bison, Freedom Group and holds several appointments
within the Steinhoff group, with specific responsibility for the southern African and Indian operations.

Rodney Howard Walker (49)~

Rod heads up the group’s operations in the Pacific Rim and was appointed to the board in March 2004. He was appointed
managing director of Freedom Group Limited, listed at the time, in June 2000 and led the management buyout and delisting of
Freedom Group at the end of 2003. Freedom is a major retailer of furniture and housewares in Australia and New Zealand. He
started out as a sales representative in the publishing industry and held various management positions in the food and beverage
industry in the USA and Australia. He acted as a director of operations, development and logistics for Pizza Hut Australia Limited
before joining Freedom Group as director of logistics and human resources in 1994. Rod held various positions in Freedom Group
before being appointed as managing director. Following the supply and alliance agreement concluded with Steinhoff in 2001,
Rod was also appointed to the board of Steinhoff Pacific.

Karel Johan Grové (56)

Jo is the chief executive officer of Unitrans Limited and joined Steinhoff as a non-executive director in September 2000. He has
more than 35 years of experience in the accounting and banking industries. Prior to joining Unitrans in 1998, he established and
acted as managing director of Medical Leasing Services (Pty) Limited (in 1976) and Imperial Bank Limited (in 1995). He started his
career as cost and works accountant with Shaft Sinkers (Pty) Limited in 1969. Jo completed the advanced management programme
with the University of Oxford in 1983. Jo became an executive director of Steinhoff, with effect from the approval and imple-
mentation of the acquisition of the majority shares in Unitrans.

~ Australian

* German .

# Member of audit and risk management committee

@ Member of human resources and remuneration committee mﬁm— 3 T O m*
Q Member of group risk advisory committee

* Member of nominations committee International IO_Lmzwm Lid
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Dedicated teams drive our

nmediate goals

o]

é

fostering OC@LﬁQB@_\ relations, focused on

world’s best customer service levels

increasing our competitive cost position and margins in all

@Ode@@ through business improvement programmes

continued focus to ensure stakeholder _\®g:(5\4@

remain attractive

steadily increasing cross-border and

cross-country ﬂx@Q@

expanding our product lines and thus our customer base by

building on our latest @OQC@EOS@

raising productivity, through an enlightened and motivated

NUMEAN resource Strateqy

bringing on excess O@U@O_?\ focused on
higher-margin branded products

exploring all avenues to enhance logistical @%m&@jg@@

in distribution, warehousing and retail

maximising intragroup trading and building on synergies

derived from worldwide @OCﬁO_D@

maintaining clear and effective OOBBCD_OQ_QO_J

with all stakeholders
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Joint report by chairman and chief executive officer

Steinhoff m

International Holdings Ltd

O
O

i
DRI

Ol 5

EXCE

Dear shareholder

This has been an exceptional year. Not only has the group continued to deliver on its objectives of profitable top-line growth and increased returns on
invested capital, but has done so while driving an organisational change process and coping with markets disrupted by currency fluctuations and soaring
raw material and fuel prices.

raw material | manufacturing | warehousing and d | household good
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Joint report by chairman and chief executive officer (continued)

UK, Australasia, Europe and South Africa, broadening
the diverse talent pool at Steinhoff.

The responsibilities of the board of directors are
becoming increasingly important. The Steinhoff board

is successful in its obligation to challenge management
and we value the contribution of afl independent non-
executive directors at Steinhoff.

Steinhoff has a culture that thrives on change, in
addition to a common set of values which enables it
to face any environment with confidence.

Performance

Revenue and earnings

The group’s revenues in rand increased by 81% from
R10 572 million to R19 114 million. A portion of this
increase was attributable to the consolidation of the
results of Unitrans (six months) and PG Bison Holdings
(Pty) Limited (12 months), both of which were previously
associates and are now subsidiaries of the group.

The group generated 52% (2004: 83%) of its revenues
in currencies other than South African rand, principally
euro, pound sterling (GBP), US dollar (USD) and
Australian dollar (AUD). The revenue achieved in

euro terms increased by 88% from €1 287 million

to €2 416 million.

Headline earnings grew by 35% from R1 178 million
in 2004 to R1 590 million.
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Headline earnings per share increased 28% to

141 cents (2004: 110 cents) with basic earnings per
share increasing 47% to 141 cents (2004: 96 cents).
The weighted average number of shares in issue

g the year to 1 128,1 million
(2004: 1 067,5 million).

Balance sheet
Ordinary shareholders’ funds at 30 June 2005
amounted to R8 276 million (2004: R6 455 million).

Return on average ordinary shareholders’ funds
increased to 22% (2004: 21%). The net asset value per
ordinary share improved further by 27% from 575 cents
to 732 cents per share, despite an increase in the
number of issued shares to 1 130,6 million at 30 June
2005 (2004: 1 123,0 million).

The group’s cash flow from operations was

R1 424 million (2004: R1 539 million). Cash generation
is calculated after a net increase in working capital

of R991 million (2004: decrease of R97 million). This
was attributable to an increase in inventory and
accounts receivable commensurate with the group’s
growth in activity levels, and the continuation of the
policy of accelerated payments to suppliers to obtain
preferential treatment.

Sourcing and margins

The average operating margin of the group was 10,6%
for the year. However, to facilitate comparison with
previous periods, if the effects of Unitrans’ lower

margins are eliminated on a pro-forma basis, the
operating margin of the remainder of the group
improved to 13% (2004: 12,5%). The group continues
to benefit from enhanced efficiencies throughout the
supply chain, its critical mass and its policy to fund
third-party suppliers to achieve favourable terms of
supply of outsourced products.

The group's expansion of the buying office in China
and the centralisation of all third-party sourcing and
distribution activities under the Pacific Rim division are
continuing to deliver positive results. The wholesale,
distribution and retail business segment, which already
comprises 51% of Steinhoff's sourcing revenue,
enhances the group’s flexibility and product offering
and continues to contribute to market share gains in
the group’s principal markets.

Corporate activity

We pursued our strategy of targeting appropriate
investment opportunities and concluded the following
corporate transactions during the period under review:

Hukla

We expanded our European range with effect from
1 October 2004, when Steinhoff acquired, from the
liquidator concerned, the assets, including designs,
brands, trademarks, drawings and manufacturing
equipment, of Hukla Mébelwerke GmbH. This
acquisition of the assets and brands is proving
beneficial and its incorporation as part of the group
is already delivering the desired results.

e HUKIA aSsets and brands

acouired in October 2004 are already

delvering the desired results




Unitrans Limited (Unitrans)

Following the exercise by Steinhoff of its pre-emptive
right on the 34 216 680 shares held by Murray & Roberts
Limited in Unitrans, at 2 632 cents per share, the related
offer to Unitrans minorities attracted acceptances for

1 050 Unitrans shares, translating to an additional
investment in Unitrans of R900,6 million. Steinhoff now
holds 62,8% of Unitrans’ issued share capital.

Homestyle Group plc (Homestyle)

In June 2005, Steinhoff Europe acquired 60,8% of
Homestyle's issued share capital, pursuant to a
subscription for 157,6 million shares in Homestyle at
55 pence per share and through a series of placements
of shares for cash (the Homestyle refinancing)
underwritten by Steinhoff Europe. The Homestyle
refinancing raised GBP105 million, before expenses.

From the proceeds, Homestyle's entire amount of bank
borrowings was redeemed and an outstanding value
added tax claim in respect of structural guarantees
settled.

In addition, Steinhoff Europe agreed to make available
a working capital facility of GBP20 million to Homestyle
for the period ending on 31 October 2006. As a result
of the refinancing, Homestyle is largely interest-bearing
debt free. It is now in a position to enhance its product
offering through better merchandising and increase its
margins through improved suppliers’ terms. Homestyle
operates through two divisions: the bed division,

with 436 stores under the “Bensons for Beds”,
“Sleepmasters” and "Bedshed” trade names, and the
furniture division which trades through 177 stores under
the “Harveys” trade name. Homestyle last reported an
annual revenue of GBP453,6 million (2004: 53 weeks
GBP379,5 million) none of which was included in the
results for the year under review. Following this
acquisition, lan Topping, our UK chief executive officer
(CEO), was appointed as CEO of Homestyle. Markus
Jooste and Jan van der Merwe joined the board as
non-executive directors. Homestyle is listed on the
London Stock Exchange.

Amalgamated Appliances Holdings Limited (AMAP)
On 1 September 2005, a book-building process
managed by Nedcor Securities (Pty) Limited, closed in

respect of the sale by Salton Inc of 111 544 628 shares
in Amalgamated Appliances Holdings Limited (AMAP)
(being 52,6% of the issued share capital). The book-
build was closed at a price of 495 cents per AMAP share
{cum the dividend of 17 cents per share declared on

24 August 2005) and delivery and settlement occurred
on or about 30 September 2005. Steinhoff Africa
Holdings (Pty) Limited and its nominee(s) were allocated
53 259 690 AMAP shares (a 25,1% interest) for a total
consideration of R263,6 million payable against delivery
of the relevant shares in dematerialised form.

Steinhoff now holds approximately 26% of the issued
share capital of AMAP.

AMAP is a well-known distributor in South Africa

of consumer electronic equipment and electrical
appliances. Major brand names include: appliance
division: Russell Hobbs, Remington, Salton, Tedelex,
Pineware and Haz, and consumer electronics division:
Pioneer, Toshiba, Sansui, Tedelex and Tannoy.
Substantial synergies between AMAP and Steinhoff
Africa exist particularly in warehousing, logistics and
distribution. AMAP, as an associated company of
Steinhoff, should also bring other benefits to bear in

the form of enhanced utilisation of sourcing,

infrastructure and purchasing power.

The corporate activities discussed above strengthen our
product offerings, improve our potential for growth and
further strengthen our balance sheet.

Funding and borrowings

The group completed various funding activities
during the year under review which are detailed in the
financial officers’ report.

Performance management

Steinhoff operates within a rigorous performance
management framewark which ensures that both
business and individual performance are managed,
measured and rewarded consistently. It applies
performance management across the group, ensuring
that our strategy is included in objectives of the group,

divisions, corporate functions and individuals. As part of
our framework, a series of financial and non-financial
performance metrics are measured and reported on
each month. These metrics include group management
accounts, financial performance, progress towards
strategic priorities, key issues pertaining to the month
and the significant risks at group, divisional and
functional levels.

Corporate governance

The global trend towards increased corporate
responsibility extends equally to South African
companies. Steinhoff fully embraces and supports the
key characteristics of discipline and full disclosure as
advocated by The King Il Report on Corporate
Governance (King Il). Good corporate governance

is shown in the group’s strong values of integrity,
responsibility and risk consciousness. A number of
initiatives are in place to ensure the highest standard
of corporate governance in each of the jurisdictions
in which the group operates.

We have in place a number of policies that seek to
foster and maintain our well-earned reputation for
integrity and ethical business conduct.

Steinhoff as a corporate citizen

During the past year, Steinhoff strengthened its

social investment division in South Africa with the
appointment of well-qualified and experienced black
professional managers, to ensure that corporate social
investment focuses increasingly on entrepreneurial
projects that are sustainable and empower people by
equipping them with quality education and
entrepreneurial skills. The group believes that this
empowerment strategy will help it to contribute to
South Africa's growth, which is vital for the stability of
the country. This is discussed in greater detail in our
sustainable development report later in this annual report.

South African economy and environment
The South African economy has proved remarkably
resilient this year, especially against the background of
massive external shocks and a recession in Europe and
other major economies.
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Financial officers’ report

Steinhof m

International Holdings Ltd

Q) OV ope rantir J) [Proi It

introduction
Steinhoff is an international business, listed on the JSE, with 2005 revenues of R19 114 million and operating profit exceeding R1 993 million. The group

comprises businesses operating in a competitive environment in South Africa, Europe, the United Kingdom and Pacific Rim. The group considers its core
strengths to lie in a number of key areas, including low-cost country manufacturing operations predominantly selling products in developed markets,
exceptional product-sourcing skills, sound balance sheet, strong asset management skills, an integrated approach to risk management, a dedicated
customer service focus, and careful management of supplier and strategic customer relationships.

raw material | manufacturing | warehousing and distribution | retail | household good

8 Steinhoff Annual Report 2005
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Financial officers’ report (continued)

Syndicated loan programme

Steinhoff Europe concluded a new SLF for an amount
of €235 million comprising a new revolving credit
facility. The new SLF replaced, and expanded, the

previous revolving credit facility of €125 million, at an
improved interest margin, and has a term of three years
from 30 June 2005, with an option to extend for a
further two years. A syndicated acquisition finance
facility of GBP100 million was raised in the UK at an

average margin above LIBOR of 45 basis points.

Steinhoff Investment Holdings Limited (Steinhoff
Investment) — Preference shares

On 15 June 2005, Steinhoff Investment, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the company, issued perpetual preference
shares to raise an amount of R650 million before costs
to optimise the group’s balance sheet structure through
the provision of appropriate permanent capital to fund
its growth and development.

6 500 000 variable rate, cumulative, non-redeemable,
non-participating preference shares with a par value of
0,1 cent each in the capital of Steinhoff Investment
were issued at a premium of R99,99 per share (the
preference shares). The preference shares were listed
on the JSE on 15 June 2005.

These preference shares are non-participating,
non-redeemable and bear a cumulative semi-annual

20  Steinhoff Annual Report 2005

dividend based on 75% of the prime bank overdraft
rate from time to time.

With effect from 1 May 2005, Steinhoff Investment
acquired the entire issued share capital held by
Steinhoff in its two main operating subsidiaries,
Steinhoff Mébe! Holdings Alpha GmbH and Steinhoff
Africa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited (the acquisition)
and as such, Steinhoff Investment became the
intermediate wholly owned holding company for all

of Steinhoff’s investments. Had the acquisition

been effective on 1 July 2004, the relevant financial
information on Steinhoff and Steinhoff Investment

for the year ended 30 June 2005 would have been
identical. However, no consolidated financial
statements for Steinhoff Investment have been
prepared for the two-month period ended 30 June
2005, but preference shareholders are referred to the
results in this annual report for a full appreciation of the
consolidated results and financial position on the basis
of a full 12-month reporting period.

The first dividend to be declared in respect of the
preference shares will be for the period from their issue
date up to and including 31 December 2005. This
dividend will be considered and declared in accordance
with the terms of issue of the preference shares, during
March 2006 and, after declaration, be payable by the
end of April 2006.

Profit before tax

The group tax charge for the year increased from
R145,4 million to R222,1 million, as a result of higher
pre-tax profit in the current financial year and a
higher effective rate of tax. The inclusion of Unitrans
(six months) and PG Bison’s (12 months) results also
impacted on the current year’s effective tax rate,

through their inclusion in the group tax charge.

The effective rate of tax depends on a number of
factors. The mix of profits impacts the rate because
of the different rates applied to taxable profits in the
different jurisdictions, tax-exemption and low tax rates
in certain countries.

Earnings after tax for the year improved by R694 million
to R1 605 million.

Management remains confident that the average tax
rate of the group will not exceed 15% of pre-tax
income for the foreseeable future.

Headline earnings per share

For the year, headline earnings per share increased by
28% to 141 cents, basic earnings per share increased
by 47% from 96 cents to 141 cents, as a result of the
businesses’ improved operational performance and
competitive interest charges, aided in part by attractive
taxation rates.

—anings after 1axior e yeer
imoproved by R694 milion to K1 605 milion
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Financial officers’ report (continued)

While our investing activities consumed R2 479 million
(2004: R1 363 million), the net cash inflow from our
financing activities generated R2 996 million

(2004: R1 668 million). Details of this are reflected

in the funding and borrowings section above.

Our cash resources are sufficient for our existing

investment programme and any costs of acquisitions.
We will approach shareholders shouid we need to do
so in future for funding new investment opportunities.

Interest, tax and dividend payments totalled
R703 million {2004: R232 million).

Our investment strategy is to drive the growth and
development of our competitive businesses through a
balanced programme of capital investment, which will
deliver higher returns in our businesses. All investments
are assessed on a risk-adjusted returns basis, expected
to be earnings enhancing and should support our aim
to retain our credit rating for our principal operating
subsidiaries.

Capital expenditure

Increased capital expenditure arose mainly as a result
of the upgrade of the chipboard facility at Piet Retief
in addition to the maintenance of capacity and
technological upgrades.
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Share buyback

At the annual general meeting of members held on
29 November 2004, a special resolution in line with
listing requirements granting authority to Steinhoff or
Steinhoff subsidiaries to buy back up to 20% of the
issued shares of Steinhoff International Holdings

Limited in any one fiscal year, was approved.

Corporate activity
We have detailed all the significant transactions
effected during the year in the joint report of the

chairman and the chief executive officer.

Information technology

We have made significant investments in IT,

both hardware and software, across the group, which are
generating improved and faster information flows.

Our aim is to use technology as a competitive advantage

in our industry, working via effective platforms.

Risk management

The board is responsible for the group’s system

of internal control and risk management and for
reviewing its effectiveness. To discharge that
responsibility, the board confirms that during the
period it has established the procedures necessary
to implement the recommendations, including clear

operating procedures, lines of responsibility and
delegated authority.

A detailed discussion on risk management appears
in the corporate governance statement fater in this
annual report.

Treasury management

The group treasury function is authorised to conduct
the day-to-day treasury activities of the group within
policies set out by the board. The group treasury
function reports regularly to executive management
and quarterly to the board, through the performance
and risk report and is subject to risk control, internal
and external audits.

International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS)

In January 2005, the JSE adopted regulations which
require that the consolidated financial statements of
listed companies in South Africa should, from 2005,

be presented in accordance with adopted IFRS and
International Accounting Standards (1AS), collectively
referred to below as IFRS.

Steinhoff is required to present its consolidated accounts
in accordance with IFRS for the financial year which
commenced on 1 July 2005. The group’s accounts

As an international business, the group supports the

move o NAMNONISE accounting standards

Steinhoff will present its consolidated accounts in accordance with
FRS for the financial year commencing 1 July 2005
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Operational review

Steinholf S

International Holdings Ltd

Magkis JOOSTE

STEINHOFF EUROPE & PACIFIC

THE NETHERLANDS

UnITED KINGDOM FRANCE
BELGIUM

Bedding )
Retail Bedding

Sourcing and

o distribution

factories ;—
N factory
distribution centres w

661

retail outlets

digtribution centres

3

FACITORIES, 18 DISTRIBUT

GERMANY
AUSTRIA
PoLanD AUSTRALIA
SWITZERLAND CHINA
\ UKRAINE NEw ZEALAND
SCANDINAVIA
HUNGARY
1
i
Case goods
Sourcing and distribution
Upholstery
Case goods
Upholstery m
factories
factories distribution centres

230

retail outlets

[ON ©

SNTIRES AND 900 RETAIL OUTLETS

H
I
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Europe and Pacific Rim

al a gllance

Steinhoff Europe consists of a network of trading, manufacturing, distribution and retail operations as set out in the

operating structure and comprises a wide range of brands and trade names as indicated. The trading companies

are situated throughout Europe, the United Kingdom as well as China from where products are sourced. The

manufacturing companies are mainly situated in Germany, Poland, Hungary, Ukraine, the UK, The Netherlands

and Australia.

wOCxQZO >ZU

COUNTRY ACTIVITIES FACTORIES DISTRIBUTION  RETAIL LOCATIONS
United Kingdom Beds 6 2 mxﬂ Okehampton Tewkesbury
Distribution (Devon) (Gloucestershire)
Industrial Foam Wellington
Household goods (Somerset)
._._..m Zmﬁ:m.‘_msn_m Beds 1 2 Boxmeer
Distribution Hapert
Tholen
Germany Upholstery 5 4 Eastern Germany Niedersachen,
Bathroom furniture Hochsauerlandkreis Northwest Germany
Beds (Central Germany) Gengenbach,
” Case goods Southwest Germany
Distribution
|
I nnme i i e - - }
Poland and CxS.:m Upholstery 12 Dolnoslaskie, Kujawsko-Pomorskie, Lubuskie,
Case goods Mazowieckie, Pomorskie, Zachodnio-Pomorskie
Western Ukraine, Zakarpatska Province
Hungary Upholstery 2 3 9 Budapest,
Distribution Southwest Hungary, Zala Province
Household goods
mﬂm:nm Distribution 1 Obernai, Alsace
>:mz.m:m and New Nmm_mam Case goods 5 5 230 Adelaide,
Upholstery Auckland,
Imports Sydney,
Wholesaling Victor Harbour
Distribution
Household goods
China Sourcing 1 Shenzhen, China

I — T R - - el T
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Operational review (continued)

curope a
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a network of trading,

manufacturing, retail and distribution operations and
comprises a wide range of brands and trade names

as set out in the operating structure. The trading
companies are situated throughout Europe, the United
Kingdom, the Pacific Rim as well as China from where
products are sourced, whereas the manufacturing
companies are mainly situated in the eastern regions
of Germany, Poland, Hungary, Ukraine, the UK and
The Netherlands.

Market

Against the background of the world economy, trading
conditions in the market which this division serves
remain tough. As a result of the strengthening of the
euro and difficult local conditions, business failures are
expected to continue, providing our group with further
opportunities for acquiring market share.

Of significance to the group was the investment towards
year end of our interest in Homestyle Group plc,

a London-listed retail group. This group provides
significant opportunities for our manufacturing and
sourcing operations.

The Polish zloty will remain floating against the euro
until 2007, albeit within a target range.

Revenue

Revenue from our operations for the year was

€1 137,9 million, increasing 20% from €949,5 million.
in rand terms, revenue was R8 999,9 miilion over the
period, increasing 15,4% from R7 799,8 million. The
real growth was principally as a result of increased sales
volumes in the German region pursuant to market share
gains, the growth in the mail order market and the
relative weakness of the Polish zloty against the euro
which resulted in the pricing of the products produced
in Poland becoming more competitive.

m e _.»:.m ny,
Switzerl d

m:w wmmmm_:mim
We are one of the leading suppliers and distributors
of furniture in Germany, Austria, Switzerland and
Scandinavia. Our primary customers in the region are
large mail order companies, discount mass market
retailers and members of independent buying groups.
During the year under review, we added dedicated

Steinhoff retailers to our customer mix which allows us
access to a previously untapped market.

Qur main product offering in this region remains case
goods and upholstered furniture, and our repositioned
product offering and increased upholstered sales mix
proved successful in increasing our margins in a period
of immense pricing pressures.

Germany has the largest furniture market in Europe,
estimated by Market Direkt to be approximately
€32,0 billion at retail level for the 2002 calendar year,
and has the highest spending per capita on furniture of
any country in the world. The German market is highly
fragmented with no manufacturer having more than a
5% market share, and we believe our market share to
be between 3% and 5% at the manufacturing level.
Our existing retail partners in Germany are benefiting
from the associated consolidation trend which often
prevails in such a fragmented market. We are able to
benefit from their market share gains. Although

we estimate that the overall furniture retail market

in Germany decreased by over 15% during the 2001
calendar year and by 11% during the 2002 calendar
year, our sales in Germany, Austria, Switzerland and
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Operation al review (continued)

We own 11 {actories in Poland which manufacture a
variety of case goods and upholstered furniture,
primarily for export to Germany, Austria, Switzerland,
Scandinavia and the United Kingdom. The majority of
Steinhoff Europe’s revenue is generated from products

produced in Poland.

Our four case goods facilities in Poland produce a
wide range of bedroom furniture, wall units, wardrobes
and laminated wood products for export into
Germany, Austria and Switzerland, in both flat-pack
and fully-assembled form, which we sell at both mass
market and upmarket price points. Three factories are
dedicated to the production of products sold under
our Klose brand.

Of our seven upholstered furniture plants in Poland,
two currently produce upholstered furniture for German
mail order customers and one is focused on the UK
market which we have identified as a significant growth
opportunity for our Polish and Hungarian operations.
Of these, the Ukraine plant also produces furniture for
the Russian market.

During the year, we added the French mail order
market which grew to expectation. The Hukla brand

also provided exposure to French and Spanish markets.

The remaining facilities produce goods for Germany,

f=1
Austria, Switzerland, Scandinavia and the local
Polish market.

We operate two manufacturing facilities in Hungary.
One is a mid to upmarket leather upholstered furniture
producer that sells approximately 35% of its products
within Hungary and exports the remaining 65% to
Germany, Austria, Switzerland, the Benelux countries
and the United Kingdom. Qur other Hungarian facility is
a chair factory specialising in leather diningroom chairs,
most of which are exported and sold in Germany,
Austria and Switzerland. Products are distributed and
sold into the local market through our retail operations,
Quattro Mobili and Andante. We have undertaken our
own retail operations in Hungary due to the absence
of existing independent retail distribution channels

for our products there.

We have one production facility in Ukraine which
started production in 2001. This facility produces
upholstered furniture predominantly for the local
Ukrainian market as well as for export to Russia.
However, the facility also produces components

for our Hungarian leather upholstered furniture plant.
As our Ukrainian operations develop, we intend to
export more of these products into western Europe.
Production costs in Ukraine are the lowest among our

European operations and we are seeking to expand
our manufacturing operations in Ukraine to further
benefit from these cost savings. To help achieve this
goal, we recently increased our investment to make
it a wholly owned subsidiary.

We have been sourcing high-quality timber from Russia
since the early 1990s. We continue to investigate the
possibility of relocating certain of our timber operations
in Poland to Russia in line with our drive to improve
efficiency and reduce transportation costs.

mwm Zmzm:m_._m:n_@
m:%__x,m:nm

In The Netherlands, we have held a 50% interest in Van
den Bosch Beheer BY, a joint venture with the Van den
Bosch family, since 1991. The group sells a wide range
of household goods to retailers in The Netherlands,
Belgium, Luxembourg and Germany. The joint venture
does not conduct manufacturing operations.

We sell, among other brands, Habufa branded products,
comprising a range of rattan, antique reproduction
and upholstered furniture. We implemented a new

e MAJ0IY Of Steinnoff Europe’s revenue

S generated from products produced in Poland
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Operational review (continued)

the balance sheet

Homestyle to nce
to a net asset UOm_:o: m__BSmﬁo ng settle its
outstanding dispute with HM Customs & Excise and
begin to realise commercial benefits from the strategic
investment by Steinhoff Europe. Our dealings with
Homestyle are governed by an arm's-length relation-
ship agreement and we are confident that our
manufacturing, sourcing and logistics expertise and
capabilities will prove invaluable to its development
over the longer term.

Financials

Turnover on continuing Homestyle businesses for
the 52 weeks to 30 April 2005 increased by 20% to
GBP453,6 million (2004: 53 weeks GBP379,5 million).
Total sales for the prior year were GBP588,7 million,
which included a full-year contribution from Rosebys
(the home textiles business disposed of in May 2004)
of GBP201,5 million. In comparison, total sales from
textiles this year were GBP11,4 million.

Operating profit before exceptional items and

goodwill amortisation was GBP15,6 million (2004:
GBP18,3 million). The net interest charge before
exceptional charges for the period including pension
finance costs was GBP4,5 million (2004: GBP6,6 million).

Earnings per share adjusted for exceptional items and

goodwill amortisation were 11,3 pence (2004: 12,4 pence).

During the year, there was an overall pre-financing

cash inflow of GBP16,5 million versus a cash inflow

last year of GBP20,7 million, reducing net debt from
GBP85,6 million at 1 May 2004 to GBP70,2 million at

30 April 2005 being year end. Since the year end, there
was a net cash injection of a further GBP100 million
from the refinancing and consequently the group is

free of bank debt with a committed debt facility of
GBP20,0 million from Steinhoff Europe AG on a
commercial basis. After adjusting the net liability balance
sheet position of GBP15,2 million at 30 April 2005 for
the net proceeds from the refinancing of GBP100 million
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in June 2005 t
of GBP84,

group has pro-forma net assets

on (2004: May GBP13,2 million).

>
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Furniture division

The furniture division trades under the Harveys brand
and operates from 177 locations across the UK. Now
that the refinancing is complete, management is

fully committed and focused on driving Harvey's
performance by differentiating the in-store environment
and product offer.

Total sales in the year were GBP253,5 million

(2004: GBP223,6 million excluding textile sales),
despite a 12% reduction in space, following the transfer
of beds-related space to the beds division. Operating
profit before interest, exceptional items, goodwill
amortisation and tax was GBP1,0 million

(2004: GBP2,0 million).

The newly-strengthened management team
implemented a number of trading initiatives to improve
the performance of the business. A renewed emphasis
on retail disciplines to enhance the presentation of the
offer and improved in-store marketing has established
the foundations for long-term recovery. Positive
momentum has now been quickly re-established
following the refinancing. The key element of this is a
cost-effective store refurbishment programme that is
being rolled out. The refurbished stores will include a
more subtle lifestyle-orientated point of sale, expanded
room sets — particularly bedroom ranges — simpler
ranging, voiles to soften and better articulate the in-
store environment, as well as 9030:95_ "feature’ bays
to excite customers and drive aspirational purchases.
The initial customer response has been positive and
management will be evaluating performance at
selected trial stores to refine this new approach.

Beds division
The beds division operates from 436 (2004: 396) outlets
through three formats: Bensons for Beds (274),

Sleepmasters (121) and The Bed Shed (41). It has
achieved another strong performance this year, building
on its position as the UK’s leading bed specialist.

Total sales increased by 33% to GBP200,1 million
(2004: GBP150,3 million), largely attributable to the

additional space transferred to the business from Harveys.

Operating profit for the year was GBP14,1 million (2004:
GBP13,5 million).

In terms of space, the beds division has increased by
25% this year, and this has resulted in an increase in
overall costs, as well as having to open two new
warehouses in Thurrock and Gillingham, to support
increased volumes.

The focus on product innovation and re-engineering
products continues to drive sales, as well as helping to
offset considerable rises in raw material costs. A great
deal of emphasis continues to be placed on customer
service through a series of regular training seminars.
Promotions were significantly keener this year, with
sales being extended and advertised extensively
through local media.

Although the performance of the division was
encouraging during the year, consumer spending on
‘big ticket’ househald items has slowed and this has
impacted trading.

Outlook

As recently widely published, trading UK home-related
markets has been highly competitive and consumer
confidence weak. However, current tough trading
conditions are also presenting opportunities to the
group in consolidation trends that are prevalent in its
markets.

Following the refinancing, management now has a
strong balance sheet which has enabled it to keep the
group intact, eliminate debt, improve competitiveness,
and begin to realise the commercial benefits from the
strategic relationship with the Steinhoff group.
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Operational review (continued)

Steinhoff m

International Holdings Ltd

DaNnIF vaN DFR MERWE

STEINHOFF AFRICA

STEINHOFF AFRICA FURNITURE

Bepong PG BISON AND
CASE GOODS RAW MATERIALS LoGisTics INDIA
UPHOLSTERY TIMBER DIVISION

SOURCING AND DISTRIBUTION

17 23
factories \— m factories
h factories d N

distribution centres distribution centres

4

factories

)J

2 TION CENTRES, 62 MOTOR DEALERSIAL
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Africa

Steinhoff Africa consists of a network of manufacturing, trading, distribution and logistics operations as set out in
the operating structure and caomprises a wide range of brands and trade names as indicated. The operations are

mainly situated in South Africa but covers southern Africa and extends into central Africa. The group has increased
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Passenger division
606 buses

and coaches

39 kombis/mini buses

Motor dealerships
62 dealerships

Freight and logistics
1 916 trucks
3167 trailers
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Operational review (continued)

AlTica

U
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Market

The division experienced competitive trading
conditions in the local market and tough conditions in
export markets as a result of the strength of the rand.
However, given the interest rate cuts and indications
that the government's inflation targets are being met,
the division shares the conservative but optimistic views
held on the continued levels of sales of household
goods.

As a result of the strength of the rand, imported
products have become a threat and the relative pricing
of imported electrical and audiovisual equipment has
impacted on buying patterns. The division is actively
investigating other markets in Africa and the Middle
East to ensure full utilisation of our production
capacities. Our raw material division has started foam
production in Mozambiqgue and expects to conduct a
similar venture in Angola, drawing on the experience of
our existing operations in Namibia, while the furniture
division also plans to commence manufacturing in
Mozambique.

The division continuously investigates opportunities in
furthering black economic empowerment and has
supported Mvelaphanda Capital, Arch Equity and an
empowerment trust for employees of Unitrans

in subscribing for shares in Unitrans Limited.

Revenue

In the year ended 30 June 2005, revenues increased
by 265% from R2 772,2 million to R10 114,4 million,
despite tough trading conditions and the negative
impact of the strengthening rand on exports.
Substantial value was added by our investments

in Unitrans and PG Bison.

Furniture

Our business in southern Africa has five primary
divisions: Steinhoff Africa furniture, raw materials,

PG Bison, timber and sawmilling, imports and logistics.
We produce a significant number of the major brands
at price points ranging from the upper to the lower
ends of the market. We produce for both the local

and export market and intend to increase the
proportion of revenue generated from export in the
medium to longer term.

Our manufacturing divisions responded well to buoyant
market conditions experienced during the year.

We have also expanded our import division to take
advantage of opportunities arising from the strength

of the rand and increased production from China.

The import division derives benefits from the Steinhoff
International sourcing division. Steinhoff imports also
launched Steinhoff Living which focuses on supplying
accessories to furniture.

Six of Steinhoff Africa’s production facilities manufacture
upholstered furniture, producing a wide variety of

both static and motion lounge furniture in fabric and
leather. In the financial year ended 30 June 2005,
approximately 8,7% of our southern African
upholstered furniture production, based on revenue,
was exported. Our Grafton Everest facility in Durban is
the largest upholstered furniture factory in southern
Africa in terms of production volume. Our Alpine brand
furniture, manufactured at our Cape Town facility,
consists of quality leather static and motion furniture of
which a portion is exported to the United Kingdom.

In the bedding division, we produce a wide range of
base sets and mattresses under exclusive licences
including Sealy, Slumberland, Ther-A-Pedic and Edblo.
We also produce high volumes of low-cost base sets
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Operational review (continued)

in China is also experienced by this d

ion, both in
terms of price competitiveness as well as variety of
products.

Jatex manufactures flat woven fabrics for upholstered
furniture, curtaining and napery applications at its
Rosslyn (Gauteng) factory, as well as printed stitchbond
fabrics used for mattress ticking.

Loungeweave produces woven jacquard and damask
mattress ticking in its factory in Isithebe (KwaZulu-
Natal). Its operations also include a yarn-dyeing facility
in Isithebe to support the weaving unit. Its production
currently supplies our own factories as well as other
southern African manufacturers. Loungeweave has
made significant investments in new advanced looms,
which should further enhance the range of products it
can offer customers while expanding production
capacity.

Mattex is a Cape Town-based jacquard-weaving factory
producing a wide range of damask mattress ticking,
vertical blind fabrics, woven tape and napery products.
Mattex has recently invested in modern equipment to
supply quality jacquards into Europe, both to our own
European operations as well as to third parties.
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Timber division

PG Bison

PG Bison produces chipboard and various upgraded
products and components from its facilities

in Stellenbosch, Boksburg, Piet Retief, Pietermaritzburg
and Alrode. This group also distributes its products
through its interests in Timber City and Penny Pincher
outlets. PG Bison has established a footprint in central
Africa and the United Kingdom to wholesale and
distribute its products. PG Bison is the largest producer
of chipboard in southern Africa.

In December 2003, we entered into agreements

with the remaining shareholders in PG Bison Holdings
(Pty) Limited to acquire the remaining shares in this
company. This transaction was approved by the
competition authorities in June 2004.

During the year, PG Bison completed the expansion and
upgrading of its Piet Retief particleboard plant, at a cost
of R100 million. The expansion significantly added to
total particleboard production capacity in South Africa.
PG Bison's major product range consists of:

Haw maierial dvision produces

Raw particleboard

Raw particleboard consists of pine wood particles,
eucalyptus or wood waste, bonded under heat and
pressure with a synthetic resin.

Upgraded particleboard

Raw particleboard can be upgraded by the
application of various natural and synthetic
decorative surfaces, such as wood veneer, synthetic
resin-treated decorative papers, paints and lacquers.

Raw medium-density fibre board (MDF)

Raw MDF consists of refined wood fibres from pine

or eucalyptus to form a homogeneous, stable panel,
which exhibits many of the characteristics of natural

wood and can be machined into a variety of shapes
and profiles.

Upgraded MDF

Raw MDF can be upgraded by the application of
various natural and synthetic decorative papers and
is particularly suitable for high-quality lacquering.

High-pressure laminate (decorative laminate)
Decorative laminate is a highly-durable, decorative
surfacing material, used in conjunction with particle-

foam, textles and components

for use in our products and for sale to third parties locally
and in Alrica, western Europe and Australia
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Operational review (continued)

Logistics

We have invested in logistics primarily through
acquiring strategic stakes in companies which conduct
distribution activities and serve our own and our
customers’ logistical needs as well as those of third-
party customers. Our logistics division develops
strategic logistics and distribution networks which

we use to support the efficient and reliable distribution
of our products in southern Africa. We intend to create
a single distribution channel for our own and other
manufacturers’ household products in the region, from
the factory to the end consumer.

We believe our investments in logistics will enable us to
source cost-effective, efficient and reliable distribution
channels for our products.

Unitrans

During the year, we exercised our pre-emptive rights
on an additional 38% stake in Unitrans. This transaction
was approved unconditionally by the Competition
Tribunal in January 2005 which resulted in Unitrans
becoming a subsidiary. At year end, we restructured
our interests in Roadway Logistics which is now

wholly owned by Unitrans.
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Roadway Logistics deals with the distribution of
household goods in South Africa and provides similar
services to other clients in South Africa. It also provides
warehousing services.

We chose Unitrans as our primary strategic partner
for distribution in southern Africa based on its strong
reputation and management team and its footprint in
sub-Saharan Africa. We believe Unitrans also has the
ability to grow with our operations worldwide.

Unitrans previously announced the purchase of 13,02%
of the group’s total equity by Fundiswa Investments
(Proprietary) Limited (Fundiswa), a combination of
Mvelaphanda Capital (Proprietary) Limited (Mvelaphanda),
Arch Equity Limited (Arch Equity) and an employee trust
which, together with the Steinhoff holding, has given
Unitrans a strong shareholding support base.

Freight and logistics

Besides having an adverse effect on inflation and the
South African economy, high oil prices obviously have a
direct effect on all Unitrans’s businesses. Good growth
from general economic activity, including imports,
should however improve opportunities in the
transportation sector and help to counter oil price
effects and the effects of a struggling export industry
on transportation margins.

We have @@Qm@a our Q@-@BQZ.@ 1@2@_ on an
additional stake in Unitrans

Motors

A buoyant consumer economy with relatively low
interest rates and inflation should continue to provide
a favourable environment for our motor and financial
services division.

Passenger

The economic drivers for our passenger division,
namely the level of tourism, the activity of our

mining customers, the price of fuel and the competition
from airlines on long-haul city-to-city routes, indicate a
fiercely-competitive environment for the year ahead.
However, good opportunities exist for profitable
expansion in the local and regional commuter market.

Business environment

The South African economy performed remarkably well
during the last year with above-average growth, while
inflation has remained under control. Consumer
demand has also been higher than expected, boosted
by relatively low interest rates and defying the shocks
caused by the oil price exceeding USD50,00 per barrel.

The three-year strengthening trend of the rand

to the end of 2004 has been a major factor behind
the lowering of inflation levels to within the 3% to 6%
target range. This has allowed interest rates to be
lowered to multi-decade lows. Monetary and fiscal
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Group services

Ray Cox PieT FERRERA JoHan

GELDENHUYS

EnRICO
LIEBENBERG

The team includes:

Heliaut Apel 41) (Group Toceign Cxchange Services), SAIFM
Avon Booyse (33) {Legal and Company Secretarial Services),
BComm, BProc

Yvette Boshoff (31} (Tax Services), BComm, CTA

Hans-Ulrich Bussas (49) (Legal Services), BLaw

Ray Cox (63) (Technical Services), Dip Management

Theo de Klerk (35) (Corporate Services),

BComm (Hons), CTA, Hdip Tax

Piet Ferreira (50) (Corporate Services), BComm (Hons), CA(SA)
Johan Geldenhuys (49) (Hurman Resources),

BA (Hons), MBA (HR}

Introduction

Gesche Hannig (30} (Legal Services) BLaw

Poen Hoffrman (62) {Legal Services), BA, LLB

Magdalena Kostowsks (32} {Legal Services) BlLaw

Tammy Kowalsky {31) (Internal control), BComm (Hons), CA{SA)
Ben la Grange {31) (Tax Services), BComm, CA(SA}

Enrico Liebenberg {48} (IT Services), BComm

Gareth McFarlane (45) {Africa credit) BA (Hons), CIS, MBL
Mariza Nel {32) (Corporate Advisory), BComm, ACMA (UK)
Stephan Nieuwoudt (38) (Human Resources), BComm (Hons)
Julia Pajkert (26) (Tax Services) Blaw

Shaun Pelser (34) (Legal Services), BLC, LLB

Albert Rapp (55) (Special Projects), CA(SA)

To achieve operating efficiencies and provide centralised management of activities, we provide certain
services to our operating entities on a centralised basis from our South African headquarters with

assistance from regional headquarters.

44 Steinhoff Annual Report 2005

Steinhof

International Holdings Ltd

Estie Redelinghuys (30) (Financial Services),

BComm {Hons), CA{SA)

lwan Schelbert (43) (Financial Services), BAcc

Themba Siyolo (43) (Transformation Executive) SEP Harvard,
IRDP Stellenbosch, HRM GSB UCT

Werner Smal (32) (Tax Services), CA[SA)

Lynette Tredoux (40} (Financial Services), BCompt (Hons), CTA

raw material | manufacturing | warehousing | distribution | retail | household goods
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Corporate governance

Introduction

The Steinhoff group and its directors are fully
committed to the principles of corporate governance
and application of the highest ethical standards in the
conduct of its business. The group endorses the
principles of openness, integrity and accountability
advocated by the code of corporate practices and
conduct {the code) set out in the King Il Report on
Corporate Governance {King lI). Efforts made in the
group over a number of years conform to current
international trends towards improving transparency

in reporting and accountability. In all dealings, we strive
to ensure that the interests of stakeholders are foremost
in our decisions and that they are fully informed of the
process. The board believes that the group complies
with the code.

The key principles underpinning the group’s
governance are set out in this statement. The group
believes that a corporate culture of compliance with
applicable laws, regulations, internal policies and
procedures is a core component of good corporate
governance. Steinhoff believes that while compliance
with the form of corporate governance is important,
compliance with the substance of corporate
governance will lead the company in the right direction.

The board charter

The board operates under an approved charter which
regulates the way business is conducted by the board
in line with the principles of sound corporate
governance. The board charter, modelled on the
principles recommended by King II, incorporates the
powers of the board, providing a clear division of
responsibilities and accountability of the board
members, collectively and individually, to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The annual self-
evaluation process to review the effectiveness of board,
its committees and individual directors has also been
entrenched.

Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethics, committing to the
highest standards of conduct. The code of ethics has
been approved by the directors and a formal ethics
programme rolled out throughout the group. This code,
inter alia, addresses conflicts of interest.

The group operates on the basis of decentralised
management across numerous countries, All employees
are required to maintain the highest level of ethical
standards in ensuring that the group’s business

46  Steinhoff Annual Report 2005

practices are conducted in a manner that, in all
circumstances, is above reproach.

Steinhoff continues to expand its performance-driven
culture of appropriate disclosure and transparency

in which individual executives and employees
assume responsibility for the actions of the business.
The integrity of new appointees in selection and
promotion processes is continuously assessed.

The code spells out our commitment to shareholders
and stakeholders, as well as policies and guidelines
on the personal conduct of management officials
and other employees.

Board of directors

The board of directors is appointed by shareholders
and is responsible to shareholders for setting the
direction of Steinhoff through establishing strategic
objectives and key policies.

The board comprises 14 directors, of whom seven

are non-executive directors. The board considers

Claas Daun, Dirk Ackerman, Johann du Plessis,

Jannie Mouton and Drs Len Konar and Franklin Sonn as
independent, non-executive directors, as described in
King lI. The non-executive directors, drawing on their
skills and business acumen, ensure impartial and objective
viewpoints in decision-making processes and standards of
conduct. They enjoy significant influence in deliberations
at meetings. Steinhoff's directors have a wide range

of business-related expertise, as well as significant
experience in financial, commercial and furniture industry

Meeting dates

activities. Directors are appointed on the basis of skill,
acumen, experience and level of contribution to and
impact on the activities of the group. Terms of office of
non-executive directors are subject to three-year rotation
provisions, while executive directors are appointed for
terms of office not exceeding five years, subject to the
company’s general conditions of service.

Directors must dedicate sufficient time to be able to
monitor, evaluate and provide effective commentary
to the board and management on the financial and
operational information supplied to the board.

All directors have access to management, including
the company secretary, and to information required
to carry out their duties and responsibilities fully
and effectively. Directors are encouraged to stay
abreast of the group’s business through independent
site visits and meetings with senior management.
Directors are provided with guidelines on their
duties and responsibilities and a formal orientation
programme has been established to familiarise
incoming directors with the group’s business,
competitive posture and strategic plans and
objectives.

The board meets at least four times annually and

more frequently, if circumstances or decisions require.
At all board meetings, directors declare their interests
in contracts where applicable. Meetings are conducted
according to a formal agenda, ensuring that all
substantive matters are properly addressed.

Director 13 September 2004

29 November 2004

7 March 2005 6 June 2005

Executive

BE Steinhoff

MJ Jooste

KJ Grové

FJ Nel

DM van der Merwe
JHN van der Merwe
RH Walker

Non-executive
DE Ackerman

CE Daun

JNS du Plessis
D Konar

JF Mouton

FA Sonn

NW Steinhoff

NNNSASNS

NENNNNNS

NNNNRANS
NENKNANASNS
SNNNNSSNS

NANNKNANSNS
SNSNNSNY
SNENNSASS

Note: DE Ackerman was absent due to illness on 7 March 2005.
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Corporate governance (continued)

Annual bonus - the committee uses an annual
performance bonus as an incentive to executives to
achieve predetermined financial targets based on
earnings growth and cash flow. The committee sets the
financial targets of the executives and these targets are
reviewed regularly.

Share incentive schemes — the company has share
incentive schemes for senior executives which were
approved by shareholders at the annual general meeting
on 6 December 1999 and 1 December 2003 respectively.
The committee grants rights which reflect the executive
directors’ remuneration. Rights granted are subject to
time limits and clearly-measurable performance criteria.
Indications are that the criteria set in the scheme will be
met. The criteria is regularly reviewed.

Non-executive directors

Fees for non-executive directors are recommended

to the board by the group human resources and
remuneration committee and reviewed annually with the
assistance of external service providers. The committee
takes cognisance of market norms and practices, as well
as the additional responsibilities placed on board
members by new acts, regulations and corporate
governance guidelines.

Non-executive directors receive an annual fee for their
input. In addition, a fee is paid for attending and
contributing to board and committee meetings.
Steinhoff pays for all travelling and accommodation
expenses for board meetings.

Management reporting

Management reporting disciplines include the
preparation of annual budgets by operating entities.
Monthly results and the financial status of operating
entities are reported against approved budgets. Profit
projections and cash flow forecasts are reviewed
regularly, while working capital and borrowing levels are
monitored continually.

Financial control and reporting

The directors are responsible for, ensuring that group
companies maintain adequate records, and for

48  Steinhoff Annual Report 2005

reasonable accurate and reliable reporting on the
financial position of the group and the results of
activities. Financial reporting procedures are applied
in the group at all levels to meet this responsibility.
Holding company executives meet regularly with
operating management on a formal basis and are
effectively involved in the major decision-making
processes of all group companies. Financial and other
information is constantly reviewed and any action
necessary is taken immediately.

These financial statements are prepared in accordance
with South African Statements of Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice and the consistent use of
appropriate accounting policies (unless an accounting
policy requires revision or adoption to new accounting
standards in which case proper disclosure is made),
supported by reasonable and prudent judgement and
estimates, to properly disclose the financial status.

Steinhoff is required to present its consolidated
accounts in accordance with IFRS for the financial
year which commenced on 1 July 2005. The group’s
accounts will, from this date, no longer be prepared
in accordance with SA GAAP.

Internal control and risk management

We operate a robust internal control structure. The
executive team is responsible for implementing the risk
management strategy; ensuring that an appropriate risk
management framework is operating effectively across
the group; embedding a risk culture throughout the
group; and providing the board and the audit and risk
management committee with a consolidated view of
the risk profile of Steinhoff, identifying any major
exposures and mitigating actions. This strategy
supports the board in discharging its responsibility for
ensuring that the wide range of risks associated with
the company’s diverse operations is effectively
managed in support of the creation and preservation
of shareholder wealth. The board’s policy on risk
management encompasses all significant business risks
to the group, including financial, operational and
compliance risk, which could undermine the achieve-
ment of business objectives. This system of risk

management is designed so that the different business
units are able to tailor and adapt their risk management
processes to suit their specific circumstances. Risk
assessment and reporting criteria are designed to
provide the board with a consistent, company-wide
perspective of the key risks.

The system of internal control, which is embedded in
all key operations, provides reasonable rather than
absolute assurance that the company’s business
objectives will be achieved within the risk tolerance
levels defined by the board. Regular management
reporting, which provides a balanced assessment of key
risks and controls, is an important component of board
assurance. The chief financial officer provides
confirmation on a quarterly basis that financial and
accounting contral frameworks have operated
satisfactorily. The board also receives assurance from
the audit and risk management committee, which
derives its information, in part, from regular internal
and external audit reports on risk and internal control
throughout the group. The company’s internal

audit function has a formal collaboration process in
place with the external auditors to ensure efficient
coverage of internal controls and to eliminate
duplication of effort.

The key features of the internal control system that
operated throughout the year covered by the financial
statements are described under the following headings:

B Control environment
The board has put in place a documented
organisational structure with clearly-defined and
understood lines of responsibility and delegation
of authority from the board to operating units.
There are established policies and procedures,
including the code of ethics, to foster a strong
ethical climate.

E Identification and evaluation of business risks
and control objectives
The board has the primary responsibility for
identifying the major business risks facing the group
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Corporate governance (continued)
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Cash surpluses and short-term financing needs

of manufacturing and sales companies are mostly
centralised at the African and European central
offices which invest net cash reserves on the
financial markets, mainly in short-term instruments
indexed to variable rates.

Pension and provident fund risk

A suitably qualified board of trustees exists, which
together with professional investment advisors
and internal investment subcommittees, is
responsible for evaluating the effectiveness of
investment decisions. The group, and, where
applicable, relevant subsidiaries remain
committed to its retirement obligations to current
and former employees, and to retirement benefits
in general as a key part of its remuneration
package.

Downturn in the global economy

Steinhoff maintains a geographic diversity of
businesses as a natural hedge to protect the
business against an economic downturn in
specific regions. The geographical spread of the
manufacturing, sourcing, retailing and
warehousing function allows units to quickly
adjust operations to counter market difficulties.

Regulatory environment

Various forums, led by functional experts are
used throughout the group to communicate
the direction and effect of possible legislative
and regulatory changes of countries in which
we operate to key management within our
business units.

Acquisition risk

A formal due diligence process and procedure is
in place that sets out the approach and framework
to be used when acquisitions are being made.
This includes continuous strategic analysis of
intended targets, development of acquisition
criteria, both in terms of the group's strategic
direction and potential value creation for the
respective business units of the group. A
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dedicated mergers and acquisition department
reviews and manages the entire process relating
to mergers and the application and
implementation of business combinations.

People risk

Through performance management systems,
employees’ purpose, role, function and
accountabilities are defined. Reward and
incentive schemes are in place to align people
goals to those of the group. Training is also
prioritised within the group to develop skills and
hedge against the risks posed by skill shortages
within Steinhoff's business arena.

Operational risk
At operational level, the group runs a number
of risk-control initiatives including safety
management, security, fire defence,
environmental and quality control

Insurance risk management

Where cost effective, the group maintains a wide-
ranging insurance programme providing financial
protection, predominately against catastrophic
risks. In the past year, the upward pressure on
insurance costs experienced since 2004 has
eased considerably. Although some classes of
insurance are still increasing in cost, during
2004/05, the group has worked closely with its
insurance advisors and other relevant parties to
develop initiatives designed to bring both
improved efficiency and long-term stability to
these costs. The renewal of the group’s main
insurance policies for 2005/06 has been
completed, maintaining prior year levels at
competitive values.

All risks are considered to be adequately covered,
except for political risks. Self-insurance
programmes are in operation, covering primary
levels of risk at a cost more advantageous than
open-market premiums. Regular risk management
audits are conducted by the group’s risk
management and insurance consultants, whereby

improvement areas are identified and resultant
action plans implemented accordingly. Assets are
insured at replacement values.

s Derivative risk
The use of derivative financial instruments relates
directly to underlying existing and anticipated
indebtedness, foreign subsidiary earnings and net
assets and business transactions denominated in
foreign currencies.

Main control procedures

The board has adopted a schedule of matters
which is required to be brought to it for
consideration, thus ensuring that it maintains full
and effective control over appropriate strategic,
financial, organisational and compliance issues. The
board has identified a number of key areas which
are subject to regular reporting to the board
including treasury, legal and other matters. Financial
controls and procedures are in place, including
procedures for seeking and obtaining approval for
major transactions and organisational changes as
well as organisational controls involving the
segregation of incompatible duties and controls
relating to the safeguarding of assets.

Monitoring

The board has delegated to executive management
implementation of the system of risk management
and internal financial control. The operation of the
system is monitored and a programme of reviews
focusing on key aspects of the business has been
carried out.

The board conducts a review of the operation and
effectiveness of this system of internal financial
control annually. The board considers that there
have been no weaknesses in this system that have
led to any material losses or contingencies during
the last year or the period from the balance sheet
date to the date of this report.

The directors accept responsibility for maintaining
appropriate internal control systems to ensure that
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Corporate governance (continued)

Board committees

All the committees discussed below operate within defined terms of reference and authority granted to them by the board.

Committee _

* Executive committee

[ Purpose

“ Composition

A Meetings

Responsible for assisting and advising the chief executive in
implementing the strategies and policies determined by the
board, managing the business and affairs of the company,
prioritising the allocation of capital, technical and human
resources and establishing best management practices.

Monitors the performance of the company and assists the
chief executive and financial officers in preparing the annual
budget for review and approval by the board.

Responsible for reviewing and monitoring the company’s
system of internal control.

Comprises seven executives
(including five directors), under
the chairmanship of the chief
executive officer.

Meets formally each month

with senior executive
management, designated staff
members and divisional directors.
[t meets informally on a

weekly basis.

* Audit and risk management
committee

Ensures integrity of financial reporting and the audit process.

In fulfilling this role, the committee reviews accounting principles,
policies and practices adopted in the preparation of financial
information in South Africa, the UK, Europe and Australia.

Ensures that sound risk management and internal control systems
are maintained. Considers significant risk and control issues arising
from the chief financial officer's report on financial and accounting
frameworks.

Oversees relations with external auditors and reviews the
effectiveness of the internal audit function.

Approves external auditors’ terms of engagement, fees, scope
of work, process of annual audit, applicable levels of materiality
and process of preparing interim results and announcement.

Ensures appropriate independence of external auditors and the
services they provide and ensures that their independence is not
impaired by non-audit services provided. Further ensures overall
compliance with corporate governance principles regarding
external audit function.

Comprises four members, three
of whom are independent
non-executive directors, under
the chairmanship of the
independent, non-executive
director, Len Konar.

Meets formally at least four times
per annum during which the
external auditors attend the
meetings.

All members attended all
scheduled meetings during
the year.
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Sustainable development report

Steinhoff supports the concept of triple bottom-line
reporting found in the King Il Report on Corporate
Governance (King ll), which embraces economig, social,
environmental and ethical considerations of companies’
activities. This reporting concept is in line with greater
transparency and accountability as entrenched in

King 1L

Ethics

All stakeholders, and more specifically, directors and
employees are required to observe the principles of
the Steinhoff code of ethics to ensure that business
practices are conducted in a manner which is beyond
reproach.

Organisational effectiveness

Human capital

At Steinhoff, we recognise that our people are our
greatest asset and employee feedback has been
incorporated into the group's human capital
management through our employee survey tools.

This group-wide employee survey measures how our
employees feel about their working environment.
The results are monitored by the executive team and
are used as a basis for action to remove barriers to
productivity and increase entrepreneurial skills and
employee satisfaction.

We remain committed to developing talent at all levels
within the organisation, supporting employee study

by providing workplace and home-based learning
opportunities and tailored management development
programmes. Throughout the group, we strive to
recognise and celebrate the achievements of our
people as we continue to build our business for

the future.

The skills and dedication of our employees underpin
the successes we as a group have achieved during
the past year. In turn, we are equally committed to
ensuring that their working environment fosters
development and growth, recognises and rewards
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individual efforts, and enables all employees to reach
their full potential.

The organisation’s hurman capital focus supports
Steinhoff's strategy of being an innovative and responsive
organisation by addressing the development of human
capital, employment equity and process capacity.

The function’s objectives are based on a dual focus:

e attract, retain and develop the best people we can
who are passionate about personal and corporate
growth and who thrive on challenges and change

s build employment equity by aligning the
demographics of our staff with that of our ultimate
customers.

Attention to human capital development and
involvement has been incorporated into all the group’s
operations. The human resources function in its role as
business partner has focused on supporting Steinhoff's
strategy and divisional business plan objectives. Our
vision is to be a world-class supplier of household
goods and related materials, a low-cost producer and
employing motivated and highly competent individuals
and teams. These are supported by:

* specific training and development interventions

* effective employee relations

professional recruitment and selection processes

market-related remuneration and ongoing improvement
of administrative policies and procedures with specific
cost reductions as end result

internal promotion

* ongoing assessment of employee and managers’
competencies with emphasis on the achievement of
certain key performance areas

open communication channels between employees
and management

benchmarking programmes to identify strong and
weak points in the group's strategy, structures,
systemns, staff and management style and other
related business processes. One of the systems
stemming from this is a comprehensive performance
management system with self-funded incentives to
recognise achievements

e building strong and credible relationships with
employee representative bodies

e employee assistance programmes which give
employees access to confidential counselling services
for work and non-work refated matters.

Management development is ongoing and a focus on
succession candidates is entrenched. The aim behind
the succession planning process has been the retention
and promotion of high-performing employees.

As at 30 June 2005, the group had approximately

41 500 full-time employees and less than 5 000
part-time seasonal employees worldwide. The table
below indicates the number of the group’s employees,
excluding non-executive directors, in each region in
which we operate on the dates indicated.

At year end, the total number of employees worldwide
was approximately 70% male and 30% female. Of the
total of 24 500 employees in southern Africa, 91% are
black and 9% white.

30 June

2005 2004 2003 2002
Southern
Africa 24 500 13 100 10 600 11700
Central and
eastern
mcﬂovm_ 7 200 8 000 7 500 8 350
Western .
Europe? 5 500 1200 1750 2000
Pacific Rim
and India 4 300 4 300 550 500
Total 41 500 26 600 20400 22 550

1. Central and eastern Europe include Hungary, Poland
and Ukraine
2. Western Europe includes Belgium, Germany,

The Netherlands, France and United Kingdom
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Sustainable development report (continued)

Somerset. The business unit's involvement will
influence European funding for the Wellington project
aimed at enhancing the prosperity of the town.

Freedom Australia has, for over five years, supported
the Children’s Cancer Institute of Australia (CCIA)
which is a non-government charity, whose aim is to
find a cure for childhood cancer through medical
research. In 2004/2005, AUD84 000 were raised by
selling special charity products. Guests Furniture
supports the Salvation Army in Australia by providing
a service of collecting customers’ excess furniture for
those in need.

Qur operations in Hungary support a “contemporary

foundation” which is connected with economics,

aid for secondary schools and institutions of higher

education. They also play an important role in

the local cultural life with art exhibitions and

by sponsoring the Andante - MKB International

Jazz Festival and a music school in Nagykanizsa.

The operation sponsors the Andante football

team and an employee engaged in weightlifting.

Our operations in Hungary support the Red Cross

with a grant of furniture.

e Operations in Poland have become involved in
community-based projects. These included the
donation of furniture to communities in need.
Steinpol Meble won the German Mobel Cup last year.

s Steinhoff Germany organised a summer festival
in June 2005 as a fundraiser.

e Homestyle recruits employees from the communities
in which it operates. The group encourages
fundraising by employees and administers
charitable trusts.

* The company has enjoyed the fifth consecutive
Steinhoff horseracing event in South Africa and plans
to launch its next initiative in caring for Aids orphans
in South Africa, at the Gommagomma Summer Cup
which will take place on Saturday, 26 November 2005
at the Turffontein Race Course, Johannesburg.

® The company enjoys honorary membership of the

Tikkun Foundation, an organisation focused on

uplifting historically disadvantaged groups in

South Africa.
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e Steinhoff has operating units countrywide in South
Africa which have made significant contributions to
surrounding communities. Projects supported are
selected through consultation between management
and employees at the various sites.

In addition to various business unit community-based

activities, our South Africa division is increasing the
number of adopted Aids orphans. The main objective
of this project is to ensure that surviving orphans
obtain the required support to assist them in
becoming part of the future of South Africa.

Roadway Logistics has a learnership programme for

Code 14 drivers, including five fermales. Roadway
Logistics is running a diversity training programme which
all employees should complete by June 2006.

PG Bison has contributed substantially to sponsorship
for cricket development in South Africa as well as

a programme to provide netball and soccer gear to
19 schools including the Thokosa Brothers Football
Club. The company annually provides bursaries for
employees’ children.

Victoria Lewis, a division of PG Bison Components,
subsidises a nursery school for young children of
employees living close to the factory.

The bedding division of Steinhoff donated 220 beds
to the Cedar Foundation to upgrade facilities for their
students.

Unitrans focuses on job creation, HIV/Aids,
community development and crime prevention. Its
strategy is guided by developmental priorities on the
national agenda in South Africa and is geared towards
developing expertise and skills that will serve its
future human resource requirements. The corporate
social involvement programme continues to support
development aimed at the fulfilment of human needs
by assisting in meaningful sustainable development.

Health and safety

Health

Health and safety continues to be our top priority

and during the year we reviewed our health and safety
policy and standards. Steinhoff has a good health

and safety record, but it is our ambition to achieve

world-class health and safety performance throughout
the group.

Sustainable improvements have been made in the
management of health and safety across the group.
Our policy and standards reflect our determination to
achieve our goal of creating a positive and productive
environment that is free from injury or illness and
causes no harm to our employees, customers or the
general public.

We have stepped up employee involvement and
training, launched behavioural safety audits and
worked with our contractors to ensure they share our
commitment to health and safety. We have also
improved the sharing of best operational practices
across our businesses.

A comprehensive occupational health and safety system
has been rolled out in Freedom’s retail and Steinhoff
Pacific's manufacturing operations. This proactive
approach has been endorsed by regulatory authorities.
Freedom also has counselling services, enabling staff to
seek professional and confidential advice in relation

to work and personal matters.

Homestyle undertakes in-house health and safety
audits and provides checklists for management teams
at all sites.

Relyon has been actively involved in addressing
musculoskeletal disorder risks.

Steinhoff Africa embarked on an integrated health risk

management process. As part of this process, !
occupational and primary healthcare clinics within the |
group were introduced. For purposes of this process, :
occupational healthcare refers to legislated occupational A
health risk management, including occupational hygiene,

periodic medical surveillances in line with specific risk

,
,
Uﬂoﬁ_mm‘rmm_%msammﬁma\‘?mﬂwa\onncvmzo:m::_.c:mm A
and disease management, etc and primary healthcare 7

chronic refers to disease management and medication
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Sustainable development report (continued)

Forestry Stewardship Council (FSC)

Qur timber and sawmilling division maintains its FSC

Melrose Park is a facility in Australia which holds

1SO 9001 certification.

Ethnic split Africa

2005

] ..l
\_oo\u_ ._No\o_ 1—0e\e

accreditation and sources all timber from accredited 63%
forests. This international accreditation assures Die Klose Collektion GmbH DIN 1SO 9001:1994 2004
consumers and customers that the plantations are well Klose Pomorska FM Sp.zo.o. DIN 1SO 9001:2000
managed on a sustainable basis with minimum or no Klose Goscicinska FM Sp.zo.o. DIN SO 9001:2000
adverse effects on the environment. This division strives ~ Klose Czerska FM Sp.zo.o. DIN 1SO 9001:2000 1 | -
to ensure that synergies are applied in full use and Kolekcja Mebli Klose Sp.zo.o DIN 1SO 9001:2000 62% 16% ._A.mo\e_ _q.mo&
recovery of natural sources utilised in the production Kanisza Trend Kft DIN 1SO 9001:2000
of our products. and DINISO 14001 © Black [ Coloured
Visita/Polstermdbel GmbH DIN 1SO 2001:2000
ISO certification Schonbrunn incan White
Several business units have achieved 1SO certification Polstermébel GmbH DIN 1SO 9001:2000
as set out below. Hukla Gengenbach
Polstermdbel GmbH DIN SO 14001 Workforce
The operations in Hungary implemented a customer- Pritex DIN 1SO 14001 and 2005
orientated quality management system 1SO 9000:2000. Qs 9000
Kanisza Trend holds 1SO 9001 and 14001 certification. Relyon DIN 1SO 9001:2000 | I
Norma DIN 1SO 9001:2000 . 229
Relyon group and Norma hold ISO 9001 certification Moxwood DIN I1SO 9001:2000
while Pritex qualifies for QS, which is the stricter Moxwood (Factory 1 and 2) DIN 1SO 2004
certification required by the automobile industry. Pritex 14001:1996
also holds ISO 14001 certification. Mattex DIN 1SO 9002:2000 1
Loungeweave DIN 1SO 9001:2000 lo2% g%
Of specific note is the 1SO 9001:2000 certification in and 9002:2002
the Klose division which contributes to world-class Woodline Timber Industries DIN ISO 9001:2000 -
i ! Permanent _H_Oozz‘mﬂ

HR practices.

Moxwood was one of the earliest companies in the

Lurand Investments
PG Bison
Freedom (Melrose Park)

DIN 1SO 9001:2000
DIN 1SO 2001:2000
DIN 15O 9001:2000

group to convert to the 2000 version of ISO 9001; Geographic split worldwide

this was achieved early 2001. Moxwood further holds
ISO 14001 certification for two of its factories, being
Factory 1 and Factory 2. The teamn is implementing
OHSAS 18001 which addresses all occupational health
and safety issues.

Mattex holds I1SO 9002 certification. Loungeweave
holds ISO 9001 and 9002 certification.

PG Bison, Lurand Investments and Woodline Timber
Industries all hold I1SO 9001 certification.
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Gender split
2005

§9% 31%

2004

i ]
_Mco} _ 30%

| !'Male D Female

2005

!
_ 59%

[
_w‘_a\c 10%

2004

49%

I Africa

| 1
_NMe\o —aou\u

[ Europe

Pacific Rim
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>3m_v\mmm of wjmﬁij_QE@ for the year ended 30 June 2005

Shareholder type
Public Directors Other
Number % Number % Number %
]
SHAREHOLDERS IN SOUTH AFRICA

* Number of shareholders 4 886 99,78 10 0,20 1 0,02
¢ Number of shares 533 874 442 94,61 27 896 382 4,76 3585 338 0,63
SHAREHOLDERS OTHER THAN IN SOUTH AFRICA

¢ Number of shareholders 265 98,15 4 1,48 1 0,37
* Number of shares 405 423 489 71,21 163 386 493 28,70 529 391 0,09
TOTAL

* Number of shareholders 5151 99,69 14 0,27 2 0,04
* Number of shares 939 297 931 82,78 191 282 875 16,86 4114729 0,36

According to the share register of the company, the following shareholders are registered as holding
in excess of 5% of the issued share capital of the company:

SCMB Custody Account 592 819 783 52,24
Nedcor Bank Nominees Limited 213 063 620 18,78
First National Nominees (Pty) Limited 149 266 386 13,15

955 149 789 84,17

Save for the above, according to the disclosure in terms of section 140A of the Companies Act,
the following shareholders are registered as holding in excess of 5% of the issued share capital
of the company, as compiled from the nominee disclosures:

RMB Asset Management and funds administered by them 146 238 299 12,89
BS Beteiligungs und Verwaltungs GmbH 106 660 607 9,40
Stanlib Limited 83 833 210 7,39
Investec Asset Management 65 125 417 5,74

The following table sets out the high and low closing prices of Steinhoff shares and the average daily trading volume of our shares on a yearly basis for the last five financial
years, as reported by I-Net Bridge (Pty) Limited, a South African financial information service:

Closing price Average daily
High Low trading volume
(Rand per share) (Number of shares)

|
Year ended 30 June

2000 6,75 3,85 724 827
2001 7,50 5,80 890 168
2002 9.13 6,20 1471125
2003 8,20 4,55 1371338
2004 9,05 6,60 2 896 807
2005 15,40 7,60 3186 578
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Report of the independent auditors for the year ended 30 June 2005

TO THE MEMBERS OF STEINHOFF INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Introduction

We have audited the group annual financial statements of Steinhoff international Holdings Limited, set out on pages 63 to 118 for the year ended 30 June 2005.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Scope

We conducted our audit in accordance with statements of South African Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit includes:

* examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;
* assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and
* evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Audit opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position of the group at 30 June 2005 and the results of its operations and cash

flows for the year then ended in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and in the manner required by the Companies Act in
South Africa.

@\m&m?.

12 September 2005
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

SHARE CAPITAL
The company’s authorised share capital of R7 500 000, divided into 1 500 000 000 ordinary shares of 0,5 cents each, remained unchanged during the year.

The following ordinary shares were issued during the year:

Date Number of shares Consideration
|

19 October 2004 1496770 Issued to employees
At year end, the group’s share trust held 4 111 728 (2004: 10 232 590) shares which have been netted off against issued share capital as treasury shares.

A subsidiary of the group also issued the following preference shares during the year:
6 500 000 of 495 000 000 authorised variable rate, cumulative, non-redeemable, non-participating preference shares of 0,1 cents each at a total premium of R649,9 million.

CONTRACTS
No contracts, other than those disclosed in note 34, in which directors and officers of the company had an interest and that significantly affected the affairs or business of the
company or any of its subsidiaries or which could have resulted in a conflict of interest were entered into during the year.

POST-BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 1 September 2005, a book-building process by Nedcor Securities (Proprietary) Limited closed in respect of the sale by Salton Inc of 111 544 628 shares in Amalgamated
Appliances Holdings Limited (AMAP) (being 52,6% of the issued share capital). Steinhoff Africa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited was allocated 53 259 690 AMAP shares (a 25,1%
interest) for a consideration of R253,6 million payable against delivery of the relevant shares.

DIRECTORATE

The executive directors in office at the financial year end and date of this report, were:
Bruno Ewald Steinhoff (German) — Chairman

Markus Johannes Jooste — Chief executive officer

Karel Johan Grové

Fredrik Johannes Nel - Financial director

Daniél Maree van der Merwe |
Johannes Henoch Neethling van der Merwe — Chief financial officer
Rodney Howard Walker (Australian)

The non-executive directors in office at the financial year end and date of this report were:
Dirk Emil Ackerman*

Claas Edmund Daun (German)*

Johannes Nicolaas Stephanus du Plessis*

Dr Deenadayalen Konar*

Johannes Fredericus Mouton*

Dr Franklin Abraham Sonn*

Norbert Walter Steinhoff (German) _ﬁ
* Independent non-executive directors W

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDING
At 30 June 2005, the present directors of the company held direct and indirect interests in 191 282 875 (2004: 189 836 242) or 16,9% (2004: 16,9%) of the company's issued
ordinary shares. There have been no changes to directors’ shareholding between year end and the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The group complies with the JSE Limited (JSE) listing requirements and in all material respects with the Code of Corporate Practice and Conduct published in the King Il
report on Corporate Governance.
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Income statement for the year ended 30 June 2005

Restated
2005 2004~
Notes R’000 R'000
e
Revenue 19 114 369 10572130
Cost of sales (13 007 442) (6 199 578)
Gross profit 6 106 927 4 372 552
Sundry income 312 284 224172
Distribution costs (723 660) (632 994)
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) 120 730 (211 559)
Fair value gains 110 814 5151
Salaries and wages {1 266 270) (859 079)
Operating expenses (2 652 341) (1 596 722)
Goodwill amortisation and impairment write-offs (15 234) (98 096)
Discontinued operations 36 - (69 652)
Operating income 1 1993 250 1133773
Finance costs 2 (385 888) (268 694)
Income from investments 3 220 160 191 856
Income before taxation 1 827 522 1056 935
Taxation 4 (222 120) (145 444)
Net income after taxation 1 605 402 911 491
Share of associate companies’ retained income 50 265 115 474
Income attributable to minority interest (64 112) 4012)
Earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders 1591 555 1022 953
Basic earnings per share (cents) 5 141 96
Fully diluted earnings per share (cents) 5 138 94
Headline earnings per share (cents) 5 141 110
Fully diluted headline earnings per share (cents) 5 138 108
Distribution to shareholders (cents) 6 30 22
Dividend cover (times) - 4

* Prior year figures have been restated to reflect the changes in the method of recognising operating lease costs and the restatement of an associated company’s figures to reflect its restatement

of foreign operations into their functional currency, the proportionate consolidation of joint venture companies and the change in the method of recognising operating lease costs.
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2005

Ordinary Non- Total ordinary Preference
share capital distributable Distributable shareholders' share capital Minority Total
and premium reserves reserves equity and premium interest equity
R’000 R'000 R’000 R'000 R'000 R‘000 R’000

[N
Balance at 30 June 2003 as previously stated 2 240 944 251788 2436 515 4 929 247 - 14 782 4 944 029
Restatements (note 35) - 8179) (48 567) (56 746) - - (56 746)
Balance at 30 June 2003 restated 2 240 944 243 609 2 387 948 4 872 501 - 14 782 4 887 283
Profit for the year - - 1022 953 1022 953 - 4012 1026 965
As previously stated - - 1 036 851 1 036 851 - 4012 1040 863
Restatements (note 35) - - (13 898) (13 898) - - (13 898)
Dividends - - (34 147) (34 141) - - (34 141)
Issue of share capital (note 18) 920 934 - - 920 934 - - 920 934
Decrease in foreign currency translation reserve - (329 837) - (329 837) - - (329 837)
Restatement of available-for-sale financial assets to fair value - (14) - (14) - - (14)
Share of associate companies’ retained earnings transferred
to non-distributable reserves - 13 341 (13 341) - - - -
As previously stated - 15720 (15 720) - - - -
Restatements (note 35) - (2 379) 2 379 - - - -
Share of associate companies’ retained earnings transferred
to distributable reserves - (23 292) 23 292 - - - -
Investment reserves released to income - (1125) - (1 125) - - {1 125)
Increase in investment reserve - 3335 - 3335 - - 3335
Net increase on acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - 18 390 18 390
Exchange differences on consolidation of foreign subsidiaries - - - - - (1 943) (1 943)
Balance at 30 June 2004 3161878 (93 983) 3386 711 6 454 606 - 35 241 6 489 847
Derecognition of negative goodwill - - 110 954 110 954 - - 110 954
Profit for the year - - 1591 555 1591 555 - 64112 1 655 667
Dividends - - (248 970) (248 970) - - (248 970)
issue of share capital (notes 18 and 20) 28 977 - - 28 977 643 879 - 672 856
Increase in foreign currency translation reserve - 342 222 - 342222 - - 342 222
Restatement of available-forsale financial assets to fair value - 482 - 482 - - 482
Share of associate companies’ retained eamnings transferred
to non-distributable reserves - 15 575 (15 575) - - - -
Share of associate companies’ retained earnings transferred
to distributable reserves - (142 467) 142 467 - - - -
Investment reserves released to income - (3 638) - (3 638) - - (3 638)
Net increase on acquisition of subsidiaries and issue of
treasury shares by subsidiary - - - - - 1173 627 1173 627
Exchange differences on consolidation of foreign subsidiaries - - - - - 835 835

Balance at 30 June 2005 3190 855 118 1M 4 967 142 8276 188 643 879

[ e S

1273815 10193 882
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Segment reporting for the year ended 30 June 2005

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

Business segments

For management purposes, the group is currently organised into two operating divisions — manufacturing and wholesale, retail and distribution. These divisions are the basis
on which the group reports its primary segment information.

Principal activities are:
Manufacturing — manufacturing of household goods

Wholesale, retail and distribution -  warehousing, wholesaling, retailing and distribution of household goods, motor vehicles and building supplies.

Segment information about these businesses is presented below.

Wholesale,

retail and
Manufacturing distribution Total
R'000 R'000 R'000

e
Year ended 30 June 2005

Revenue 9 405 831 9 708 538 19 114 369
Income before interest, taxation, discontinued operations, goodwill amortisations and impairment write-offs,

including share of associate companies’ income and excluding minority interests 1224 843 753 695 1978 538
Gross assets 12 615 285 11847 724 24 463 009
Gross liabilities (7 033 585) (8 509 357) (15 542 942)
Net assets 5 581 700 3 338 367 8 920 067
Year ended 30 June 2004*#

Revenue 7 334 650 3237 480 10 572 130
Income before interest, taxation, discontinued operations, goodwill amortisations and impairment write-offs,

including share of associate companies’ income and excluding minority interests 905 781 494 340 1400121
Gross assets 10 035 156 3525354 13 560 510
Gross liabilities (5723 321) (1 382 583) (7 105 904)
Net assets 4 311 835 2142771 6 454 606

Geographical segments
The group's operations are located in southern Africa, the European Union and the Pacific Rim.

Southern European Pacific
Africa Union Rim Total
R'000 R‘000 R’000 R'000

]
Year ended 30 June 2005

Revenue 10 114 406 6616 334 2 383 629 19 114 369
Income before interest, taxation, discontinued operations, goodwill amortisations
and impairment write-offs, including share of associate companies’ income and excluding

minority interests 647 255 1 090 538 240 745 1978 538
Gross assets 9 000 063 14 123 761 1339 185 24 463 009
Gross liabilities (6 817 910) (8 153 604) (571 428) (15 542 942)

Net assets 2182153 5970 157 767 757 8 920 067

70  Steinhoff Annual Report 2005




LL  S00Z Moday |enuuy yoyuiolg

‘JuswbBas uonNGUISIP pue [Ie1a1 ajesajoym
2y} 0} asuejeq oyl pue JuawBas Buunoenuew aY) 01 S1B|SI UOH[IW £'G LY YoIYm JO uoIBal edu)y UIBYINOs By} Ul pauses || st saluedwod 81BIDOSSE WOl SLodUl 8]
awodu) Auedwod ajeossy

‘syasse dnoib Jo uonesinn
2AI100)0 pUE JUBIDIYE SS1EM|IDE) YoIyMm ‘siseq dnosb e uo paBeuew aie uonenaidap pue ampuadxa (endes ‘dnoib a4y jo samanoe jo aineu pue aiNPNAs Byl 01 8Ng
juawbBas sad uonepasdep pue ainjipuadxs jepde)

€LLEEL L 0SZ €66 | Juswalels swoduy sad awooul Bunessdo
(259 69) - suonesado panuuodsi( sse]
- (084) 1oy $597
- (oo¥ ¢£) $1502 2Ins0|D) 1S9
(960 86) (rez s1) SHO-9}IM juswedun 18410 pue uoniesiHoWe (IMpPOoOL) 1SS37
vy StL) (592 0S) awodul saiuedwod a1einosse Jo aieys 5597
14554 oz 1) awodul 91eidOosse O Juawisn(pe aulpesH
clov Ll ¥9 1sa193ul Alouiw 01 s|qeingune 1old
vee (vev 1) $9S53UISN puUe saueIpISqns jo [esodsip uo 1yoid/(ssoT)
7169 £00 L2 juawdinba pue juejd ‘Apadoid jo |esodsip uo yjoud
izl oov L BES BL6 L sysasaul Auouiw Buipnioxa pue awoodul saiueduod aeposse Jo

aleys Buipnpul ‘syo-aium jusuuiedw pue suonesipowe |impoob ‘suonessdo panuinuodsip ‘uoiexel ‘1sesalul 8J0)aq 140id

000.d 000
700¢ S002
polesay

'SMOJ|04 se awodul Bunesado o1 pa|pUOdaI sI S)saseUl Ajuoulw
Buipnpxs pue swoodui saiuedwod s1e1Dosse Jo aieys Buipnpul ‘syo-s1um Juswlledwy pue suonesipowe |Impoob ‘suoijersdo panunuodsip ‘uonexel ‘1saleiul 810jeq 140id

Aonioodsos zop ELY O1 086 £/M PUB Z8Z 199 LY O1 661 080 LY WOl pareisas uaaq aaey sainbly 'wiy dyioed ayy 104 Ajpandadsas

059 £16Y O3 €L L 2863 PUB 8GG SEL 94 O LP9 61/ 98 WOY paieisal uaaq aaey saunbly swodul pue anusaAss ‘uolur} ueadong oyl o4 1eak 1UsLIND 8yl JO UONHEDYISSE|D 8yl Yim puodsaliod 0}

Wiy 241084 Sy Ui uoIsuedxd BYl PUB PAIINPUOD SaINANDE Buipel] jje 831ei0diodur 03 wiy diided 8yl pue ‘uojup) ueadoin] ayl usemIdq Payisseas usaq aney sisaidul Alouiw buipnpxe pue
awoour saiuedwos areposse Jo aieys Buipnpur ‘syo-aum uawiedwr pue suonesiuowe [mpoob ‘suonelsdo peanunuUOISIp ‘UOHEXE] ISBIBIUI 81048Q BLUOIUI PUE BNUBASI J0y saunby 1eak told #

‘51500 ases) Buneiado Buisiubooss jo poyow ayy ui dBueyd syl pue seiedwod ainuen 1ujof jo uonepijosuod areuoiuodord oy Aouaund jeuonduny oyl oul suonessdo ubtaiog Jo
Juaele)SaL s)t 18yl 0 sainby s Auedwod pajedosse ue Jo JuallaieIsal Yy pue s1sod asea; Bupesado Buisiubodes jo poyrew oy ui 26ueyYD ay3 1998l 03 PaJEISSL UBSG dARY sainbyy Jeak 1oud

909 ¥St 9 09 €19 196 LBE ¥ S/6 85V L slasse 18N
(¥06 SOL 2) (845 SZV) (L4 999 €) (SS8 €LO €) sa1jIqel} ss0ID
0LS 096 €1 8vZ 6£0 L ZEV 890 8 0£8 2LV ¥ 519sS€ $5010)
LZ1L 00V L vy 8ElL 059 /16 620 tvE sysasa1ul Auouiw

Buipnpxa pue swodu; sajuedwod 81e1d0sse Jo ateys Buipnpur ‘syo-aium usuwieduw pue

suonesipowe ||impoob ‘suonesado panuiuodsIp ‘UOoHEXE] ‘IS2I91UI B104a] SWODU|

0glL ¢LS 0L 8¢ ¥99 L 8GG GEL 9 062 clL ¢ BNUBASY
#xV00Z dUNnr Og PopuUs Jes)
|

0004 000.4 000.4 0004
|10l wiy uoiun ey
LIITRLN ueadouing usayinog

(panunuod) syuswbas (esiydesboan




Principal accounting policies for the year ended 30 June 2005

The group annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, the going concern principle and
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments and plantations, which are carried at either fair value or amortised cost as appropriate, and incorporate the
following principal accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in all material respects, except for the adoption of the following accounting statements:

* AC140: Business Combinations

¢ AC129: Intangible Assets

» AC501: Accounting for Secondary Tax on Companies

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statements are presented in South African rands.

The financial statements for the year cover the 12-month period ended 30 June 2005.
Unless otherwise stated, all amounts in the annual financial statements are shown rounded off to the nearest R1 000.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the company and entities controlled by the company (its subsidiaries} up to 30 June each year.
Control is achieved where the company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee entity to obtain benefits from its activities.

On acquisition, the assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at their fair values at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the cost

of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the fair values

of the identifiable net assets acquired (ie discount on acquisition) is credited to profit and loss in the period of acquisition. The interest of minority shareholders is stated
at the minority’s proportion of the fair values of the assets and liabilities recognised. Subsequently, any losses applicable to the minority interest in excess of the minority
interest are allocated against the interests of the parent.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by the group.
All intergroup transactions, balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses between group companies are efiminated on consolidation.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
An associate is an enterprise over which the group is in a position to exercise significant influence, through participation in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee, but which it does not control.

The results of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting based on their most recent audited financial statements. If the
most recent available audited financial statements are for an accounting period which ended more than six months prior to the group's year end, the most recent available
management accounting results have been brought into account. The group's interest in the post-acquisition reserves of associated companies is treated as non-distributable
in the group’s annual financial statements and is transferred to distributable reserves when the entity is disposed. The carrying amount of such interests is reduced to
recognise any decline, other than a temporary decline, in the value of individual investments.

Where a group enterprise transacts with an associate of the group, unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in the relevant associate,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Any difference between the cost of acquisition and the group’s share of the net identifiable assets, fairly valued, is recognised and treated according to the group’s accounting
policy for goodwi
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Principal accounting policies for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

The group’s plantations are classified as biological assets. These assets are measured on initial recognition and at each balance sheet date at their fair value less estimated
closure point-of-sale costs. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the plantations less estimated point-of-sale costs are recorded in net profit or toss for the
period in which they arise.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The carrying amounts of assets stated in the balance sheet, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated as the higher of the net selling price and its value in use.
An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement whenever the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the expected future cash flows are discounted to their present value that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks spe to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

A previously recognised impairment loss is only reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount, however, not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation and amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised in previous years.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. If an intangible asset is acquired in a business combination, the cost
of that intangible asset is its fair value at the acquisition date.

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is not amortised but is tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. This is a change in accounting policy as all intangible assets were previously required
to be amortised.

The carrying amount of each intangible asset is reviewed annually and adjusted for impairment where considered necessary.
The cost of renewing patents and trademarks is charged to the income statement.

LEASED ASSETS
The group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease agreements. The group is not party to any finance leases as lessor.

The group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are capitalised at their fair value at the date of acquisition. The corresponding liability to the lessor, net of finance charges, is included in the
balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Finance costs, which represent the difference between the total leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are
charged to the income statement over the term of the relevant lease to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. -

Capitalised leased assets are treated in line with the group policy on property, plant and equipment.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease agreements.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour costs and, where
appropriate, those manufacturing overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on the first-in first-

out basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs to completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Where necessary, provision is made for obsolete, slow-moving and defective inventories.
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Principal accounting policies for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

Rendering of services
Revenue from services is recognised when the services have been rendered. Where the group acts as agent and is remunerated on a commission basis, only the commission
income, and not the value of the business transaction, is included in revenue.

Interest
Interest revenue is recognised on a time-proportion basis by reference to the principal debt outstanding and at the interest rate applicable.

Dividend income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive payment has been established.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets (ie assets that necessarily take a substantial time to get ready for their
intended use or sale) are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation rate applied is the weighted average of the net borrowing costs applicable to the
net borrowings of the company. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

The group makes provision for post-retirement benefits to eligible employees and pensioners, the costs of which are assessed in accordance with actuarial principles and
recognised on a systematic basis over employees’ remaining years of service.

Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments
to defined contribution plans where the group’s obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial updates being carried out at each balance sheet
date and formal valuations performed every three years.

Actuarial gains and losses which exceed 10% of the greater of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets are amortised over the
expected average remaining working lives of the participating employees. Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and
otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the amended benefits become vested.

The amount recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and
unrecognised past service cost, and reduced by the fair value of plan assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past
service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Current and future liabilities for post-retirement medical benefits are recognised, as calculated by independent actuaries.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS
Research costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Expenditure on development is charged to income in the year in which it is incurred except where a clearly-defined project is undertaken and it is reasonably anticipated that
development costs will be recovered through future commercial activity. Such development costs are capitalised as an intangible asset and amortised on a straight-line basis
over the life of the project from the date of commencement of commercial operation.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present constructive or legal obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that it will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligation exceed the economic benefit expected to be received under it. When a
contract becomes onerous, the present obligation under a contract is recognised and measured as a provision.
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Principal accounting policies for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

Financial liabilities
The group’s principal financial liabilities are interest-bearing debt, accounts payable and bank borrowings:

Interest-bearing debt
Interest-bearing debt, including finance lease obligations, is recognised at amortised cost, namely original debt less principal payments and amortisations. The accounting
poiicy for finance iease obligations is deait with under leases set out above.

Bank overdraft

Bank borrowings, consisting of interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance costs, including premiums
payable on settlement or redemption, are accounted for on an accrual basis and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled
in the period in which they arise.

Accounts payable
Trade and other payables are stated at amortised cost. Due to the short-term nature of the group’s trade and other payables, the cost approximates its fair value.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments
The group uses derivative financial instruments to manage its risk associated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations relating to certain firm commitments and
forecast transactions.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recorded at cost and are remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates.
Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are recognised in profit and loss for the period as they arise.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of host contracts and the host contracts are not carried at fair value with unrealised gains or losses reported in profit and loss for the period.

Derecognition

Financial assets (or a portion thereof) are derecognised when the group realises the rights to the benefits specified in the contract, the rights expire or the group surrenders or
otherwise loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial asset. On derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and
proceeds receivable and any prior adjustment to reflect fair value that had been reported in equity are included in profit and loss for the period.

Financial liabilities (or a portion thereof) are derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. On derecognition, the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability, including related unamortised costs, and amount paid for it are included in the profit and loss for the period.

Fair value methods and assumptions
The fair value of financial instruments traded in an organised financial market is measured at the applicable quoted prices.

The fair value of financial instruments not traded in an organised financial market is determined using a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market
conditions and risk existing at balance sheet date, including independent appraisals and discounted cash flow methods.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to approximate their fair values due to the short-term trading cycle
of these items.

Offset

Where a legally-enforceable right of offset exists for recognised financial assets and financial liabilities, and there is an intention to settle the liability and realise the asset
simultaneously, or to settle on a net basis, all related financial effects are offset.
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005

2005 2004
R'000 R'000
e ___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|]
OPERATING INCOME
Operating income is stated after taking account of the following items
1.1 Auditors’ remuneration

—_

* Audit fees 29 678 19 304
e Other fees 7 352 2 930
® Expenses 66 109
» Overprovision in prior year (866) (104)
36 230 22 239
1.2 Directors’ emoluments
Company
Total contribution
Basic Basic Basic basic and expense Deemed
salaries salaries salaries salaries Bonus allowances interest Total
Executive directors - remuneration €'000 AU$'000 R'000 R'000 R’000 R'000 R'000 R’'000
|
2005
BE Steinhoff 840 - - 6 644 - - - 6 644
MJ Jooste 750 - - 5935 2 000 427 - 8 362
KJ Grové - - 1806 1 806 1 500 568 116 3990
FJ Nel 40 - 801 1118 650 130 - 1898
DM van der Merwe - - 2 624 2 624 2 000 376 - 5 000
JHN van der Merwe 382 - - 3019 2 000 163 - 5182
RH Walker - 477 - 2262 - 55 - 2317
2012 a77 5 231 23 408 8 150 1719 116 33393
Company
Total contribution
Basic Basic Basic basic and expense
salaries salaries salaries salaries allowances Total
Executive directors — remuneration €'000 AUS$'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
|
2004
BE Steinhoff 725 - — 5956 - 5 956
M. Jooste 660 - - 5421 324 5745
FJ Nel 35 - 764 1051 108 1159
DM van der Merwe - - 2229 2229 271 2 500
JHN van der Merwe 320 - - 2 628 124 2752
RH Walker - 285 53 1402 26 1428

1740 285 3046 18 687 853 19 540
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

2005 2004
R'000 R'000
|
1. OPERATING INCOME (continued)
1.2 Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Non-executive directors — remuneration
Fees as directors

DE Ackerman 260 220
CE Daun* 145 120
JNS du Plessis 251 190
KJ Grové*# 145 120
D Konar 290 240
JF Mouton* 200 170
FA Sonn 195 160
NW Steinhoff 145 1824
NW Steinhoff (Pension as from 1 July 2004, €180 000) 1424 -
Fees for services
D Konar 650 -
3705 3044

* Paid to various entities as management fees
# Became an executive director during 2005

Non-executive directors — share rights

Initial offer Subsequent offers
September July 2000 to July 2001 to
Offer date 1998 June 2001 June 2002 Total
]
DE Ackerman - 179 700 41 040 220 740
CE Daun - 179 700 41 040 220 740
D Konar - 179 040 41 040 220 080
NW Steinhoff - 179 760 41 040 220 800
- 718 200 164 160 882 360

All initial offers were at nominal value, subsequent offers were at 540 cents and at 528 cents per share respectively.

The deferred delivery date is three years from the above offer date, maturing at 20% per annum.

The share rights disclosed above reflect the balance of unmatured rights at year end.
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

2005 2004
R'000 R'000
L. _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
1. OPERATING INCOME (continued)

1.9 Pension fund surplus asset charge to income - 1617
1.10 Research and development costs 9 320 13096
1.11 (Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
* | and and buildings 11 749 (2877)
* Plant and machinery (20 032) 39
* Long-haul motor vehicles and equipment (2 374) -
* Motor vehicles (101) (991)
¢ Capitalised leased assets 49 -
* Leasehold improvements (8) 47
*» Office and computer equipment, furniture and other assets (16 360) (2732)
(27 077) (6 514)
1.12 Fair value (gains)/losses
* Interest rate and currency swap (134 459) -
* Fair value adjustment on accounts payable 14 (14)
* Fair value adjustment on accounts receivable (46) 106
* Embedded derivative adjustment 345 (8 188)
* Pension fund surplus asset 23 332 2930
* Other - 15
(110 814) (5151)
1.13 Loss/(profit) on disposal of subsidiaries or businesses 1434 (234)
1.14 Post-retirement benefit expenses
* Pension fund contributions {defined benefit plans) 113 1705
* Provident fund contributions (defined contribution plans) 93 588 30 629
* Contributions to state managed pension funds 193 069 121172
¢ Post-retirement medical aid contributions {paid to ifl-health employee) 51 46
286 821 153 552
1.15 Gain on fair value of plantations 18 740 14 429
1.16 Expense raised through provision for warranties 19 885 15944
1.17 Closure costs
¢ Harvesting operations 7 666 -
¢ Distribution operations 10 605 -
18 271 -
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

2005 2004
% %

4, TAXATION (continued)
4.2 Reconciliation of rate of taxation
Standard rate of taxation
Secondary taxation on companies
Prior year adjustment
Change in rate of taxation
Dividends received
Different statutory taxation rates and favourable taxation dispensations granted to foreign subsidiaries in other jurisdictions
Utilisation of taxation losses in subsidiary companies and permanent differences between taxable and accounting profits

Effective rate of taxation

4.3 Taxation losses
The estimated taxation losses available for set-off against future taxable income are:

[ —_— e s s e T T e

5. EARNINGS PER SHARE

5.1 Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net earnings attributable to shareholders by the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the year.

Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Earnings
Earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders as previously stated
Prior year adjustments (note 35)

Earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders
Basic earnings per share (cents)

As previously stated
Restatement as above
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29,0 30,0

0,9 0.1

{0.2) (1.4

(0,1) -

(0.2) ©.3)
(15.4) (11.4)
(1.8) (3.2)

12,2 13,8
R'000 R'000
551 107 334 338
'000 '000
1128 054 1 067 461
R'000 R000
1591 555 1036 851
- (13 898)

1591 555 1022 953
141 96

- 97
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

2005
R'000

2004
R’000

5.4

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Headline earnings per share (continued)

Earnings

Headline earnings is reconciled to earnings attributable to shareholders as follows:
Earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders

Adjusted for:

* Discontinued operations — South African manufacturing plants

* Closure costs

* Discontinued operations — German manufacturing plants

* Gooduwill amortisation and other impairment write-offs

* (Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

¢ Loss/(profit) on disposal of subsidiaries and business

* Gooduwill amortisation included in associate company income

* Negative goodwill amortisation included in associate company income

* Loss/(profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment included in associate company income

Headline earnings
Headline earnings per share (cents)

As previously stated
Restated as above

Diluted headline earnings per share
Fully diluted headline earnings per share is calculated by dividing the headline earnings by the diluted weighted
average number of shares in issue during the year.

Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted headline earnings per share
Earnings

Headline earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders
Interest saving on the non-exiting vendor liability by issue of the shares not for cash

Adjusted headline earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders
Fully diluted headline earnings per share (cents)

As previously stated
Restatement as above

Dilution percentage (%)
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1591 555 1022 953

- 12 289

7 400 -

- 57 363

15 234 98 096
(27 077) (6 514)
1434 (234)

- 3494

- (8 900)

1294 (707)

1 589 840 1177 840
141 110
- 112
- (2)

000 000
1128 054 1067 461
34 409 24175
1162 463 1091636
R'000 R'000

1 589 840 1177 840
17 365 -

1 607 205 1177 840
138 108

- 109

- M
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

2005 2004
R'000 R‘000

7.3

INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL (continued)
Negative goodwill

At beginning of year {64 060) -
Fair value adjustment {46 894) -
Derecognition to retained income 110 954 -
Arising at acquisition of subsidiary - (64 060)
At end of year - (64 060)
Trademarks

Cost

At beginning of year 156 334 8 954
Fair value adjustment 205 501 -
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiary 2 307 953 147 380
At end of year 2 669 788 156 334
Amortisation and impairment

At beginning of year (10 634) (8 954)
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiary - (1 680)
At end of year (10 634) (10 634)
Total trademarks 2 659 154 145 700
Total intangible assets and goodwill 3900 914 504 492

The useful lives of trademarks are deemed to be indefinite based on the current market and estimated future market trends. Trends are evaluated annually to identify
possible indications of impairments.

The reclassification of amortisation of gooduwill as well as the derecognition of negative good s due to the adoption of AC140: Business Combinations. In terms
of this statement, the company has eliminated the carrying amount of accumulated amortisation with a corresponding decrease in the cost of goodwill and
derecognised negative goodwill with a corresponding adjustment to distributable reserves.

In the prior year, negative goodwill of R64 060 000 was included in the goodwill balance. This amount has been restated to reflect the negative goodwill as a
separately disclosed item.

The fair value adjustments on negative goodwill and trademarks arose on the reassessment of provisionally determined fair values of assets and liabilities on the prior

year acquisition of PG Bison Holdings (Proprietary) Limited prior to the adoption of AC140,
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {continued)

Opening
balance
R’000

Additions
R’'000

Subsidiaries
acquired/

Disposals (disposed of)

_R'000

R'000

Reclassi-
fication
R'000

Exchange
differences
R'000

Impairment
R'000

Intergroup
purchases/
(disposals)
R'000

Closing
balance
R'000

2004

Cost/fair value

Land and buildings

Plant and machinery

Motor vehicles

Capitalised lease assets
Leasehold improvements

Office and computer equipment,
furniture and other assets

1690 096 134 569 (7 662) 344 407 10 209 (231 0571) - (1) 1 940 567
966 823 91587 (42 279) 443 172 4791 (64 596) (12 210) 1175 1 388 443
78 538 9 094 (14 158) 22 500 2 333 (5 596) - (28) 92 683
345 - - 39752 - - - - 40 097
16 743 2529 (1 829} 4 500 - - - (44) 21 899
509 052 162 702 (77 660) 298 766 (17 240) (71 490) (31 970) (7 084) 765 076
3261597 400 481 (143 588} 1153097 ?3 (372 733) (44 180) (5982) 4248785
Current Subsidiaries Intergroup
Closing year (acquired)/  Reclassi- Exchange purchases/ Closing
balance charge Disposals disposed of fication differences Impairment (disposals) balance
R'000 R’000 R'000 R'000 R’000 R’000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Accumulated

depreciation

Land and buildings

Plant and machinery

Motor vehicles

Capitalised lease assets
Leasehold improvements

Office and computer equipment,
furniture and other assets
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(240 204) (63 351) 591 (73 143) 1741 40 828 - 2 (333 53¢6)
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

2005 2004
R’000 R’000
[
10. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Shares at cost

¢ Unitrans Limited* - 430756
¢ Loungefoam (Proprietary) Limited 9576 9576
* Alisa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited, trading as Hertz Rent a Car 42 385 -
* Zimbabwean associates - -
51 961 440 332
Attributable share of post-acquisition retained earnings
¢ At beginning of year 148 475 158 426
¢ Current year share of income 50 265 115474
e Dividends received (19 957) (64 125)
* Associates converted to subsidiaries (157 200) (61 300)
At end of year 21 583 148 475
Loans due by associate companies 8 641 19 277
82185 608 084
* During the year, the group increased its investment in Unitrans Limited to 60,82%, which resulted in this entity becoming a subsidiary.
Percentage holding Carrying value
2005 2004 2005 2004
% % R'000 R'000
[
Listed
® Unitrans Limited - 25,8 - 573 224
- Shares - 430 756
- Post-acquisition earnings - 142 468
Unlisted
* Loungefoam {Proprietary) Limited 47,5 47,5 31 575 34 860
* Hertz Rent a Car 40,0 - 43 202 -
¢ Zimbabwean associates 49,0 - 7 408 -
82 185 608 084
Market value of listed investment including directors’ valuation of loan - 558 780
Directors’ valuation of unlisted investments 82 185 34 860
82185 593 640

Nature of businesses

Loungefoam (Proprietary) Limited: Manufactures foam products

Hertz Rent a Car: Car rental

Zimbabwean associates: Manufacture upholstery and casegoods furniture
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

2005 2004
R'000 R'000
- _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________]
11. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES (continued)
The proportionate share of the aggregated financial information of the joint venture companies consolidated is:
Assets and liabilities

* Property, plant and equipment 92 236 99 618
* Investments and loans - 8 536
e Current assets 238 396 154 801
* Current liabilities (318 264) (83 811)
¢ L ong-term liabilities (4 623) (48 021)
» Deferred taxation - 1816
Revenues and expenditure
* Revenue 629 524 621 326
» Expenses {603 902) (562 092)
¢ Net profit before taxation 25 622 59 234
12. INVESTMENTS AND LOANS
Listed investments - 635
Unlisted investments - ordinary shares 121 117 64 650
- preference shares 180 000 -
Loans receivable 1 068 100 687 089
1369 217 752 374
Directors’ valuation of unlisted investments 301 117 64 650

Market valuation of listed investments - 635

Details of investments are available at the registered office of the company for inspection.
Unlisted and listed investments are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
The loans receivable consist of various loans with repayment terms ranging between 13 and 72 months and bear interest at market-related interest rates.

No provision has been made against these loans as the amounts are considered recoverable.

g = & o e B I
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

2005
‘000

2004
‘000

141

14.2

143

144

14.5

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

The group uses currency and interest rate derivatives to eliminate or reduce the exposure of its foreign currency denominated
assets and liabilities, and to hedge future transactions and cash tlows. The group is party to foreign currency forward contracts
in the management of its exchange rate exposures. The instruments purchased are primarily denominated in the currencies of
the group’s principal markets. As a matter of policy, the group does not enter into derivative contracts for speculative purposes.

Net currency forward contracts to sefl/(buy) foreign currency:
Euros

US dollars

UK pounds

Japanese yen

Polish zloty

Swedish kroner

Swiss francs

These currency forward contracts were fair valued at year end. The fair values are based on market values of equivalent
instruments at the balance sheet date.

Fair valuing currency forward contracts resulted in foreign currency assets as follows:
Assets

Euros

US dollars

UK pounds

Japanese yen

Polish zloty

Swedish kroner

Swiss francs

Interest rate swaps and cross-currency derivatives

During the year the group entered into a cross-currency interest rate swap on the note purchase agreement series A and B
(refer to note 22) in terms of which the fixed US dollar interest rate was swapped for a variable euro interest rate. The fair value of
the swap is estimated at R134,4 million. The amount is based on the market value of a similar instrument at balance sheet date.

Derivative financial assets

Fair valuing currency forward contracts resulted in foreign currency/(liabilities) as follows:
Liabilities

Euros

UK pounds

US dollars

Swedish kroner

Interest rate swaps and cross-currency derivatives
Derivatives financial liabilities

Net foreign currency assets
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

2005 2004
R‘000 R'000
)
18. ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM (continued)
18.3 Movement of share capital and premium
Opening balance 3161 878 2240 944
Movement for the year 28 977 920 934
Shares issued for cash - 971 083
Treasury shares sold for cash 31 367 75 294
Capitalisation dividend issued - 163 650
Capitalisation issue debited to share premium - (163 650)
Listing expenses (2 390) (50 754)
Treasury shares purchased - (74 689)
Closing balance 3 190 855 3161878
2005 2004

18.4 Unissued shares

Number of shares 369 416 193 377 033 825

The directors are authorised, by resolution of the shareholders and until the forthcoming annual general meeting,

to dispose of the unissued shares, subject to the listing requirements of the JSE relating to a general authority of directors
to issue shares for cash.

18.5 Share scheme rights
Rights allocated at 30 June (number of shares) 14 489 959 24 175 344

The above rights were issued in terms of the Steinhoff International Share Trust and other share incentive schemes
of companies acquired.

18.6 Scheme rights 37 022 506 35 254 251
The share incentive scheme was approved at the annual general meeting on 1 December 2003.

Originally 35 254 251 rights were allocated on 1 December 2003.

During the year, a number of rights lapsed and certain adjustments and corrections were effected, resulting in a net reduction
of 255 218 rights from the rights granted on 1 December 2003. A further 2 023 473 rights were allocated during the year.

At year end, 145 employees were participants under this scheme.

18.7 Disclosure requirements in terms of the Steinhoff International Share Trust deed

e Number of shares reserved for the scheme remaining unissued 103 469 553 73 919 661
* Number of shares sold by the trust to beneficiaries during the year 7 677 332 10 077 463
* Number of shares available for sale by the trustees to proposed participants 628 974 628 974

I
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

2005
R'000

2004
R'000

22.  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
22.1 Analysis of closing balance
Secured financing:

¢ Mortgage and term loans 230 398 356 227
* Capitalised finance lease and instalment sale agreements 39 645 24 360
* Long-term licence fee liability 212 418 249 146
482 461 629 733
Unsecured financing:
* Syndicated loans 1 009 625 1322 352
¢ Domestic medium-term note 413 541 -
* Guaranteed registered bonds 1 000 000 1 000 000
*» Note purchase agreement 2099 472 -
* Deferred payment — non-exiting vendors 306 789 229 400
* Puttable bond - 244 241
® Term loans 250 000 67 851
¢ Equalisation of operating lease payments 160 743 85 837
¢ Other 69 925 36708
5310 095 2 986 389
Total long-term liabilities 5792 556 3616122
Portion payable before 30 June 2006 included in short-term liabilities (note 24) 254 983 261 486
Net long-term liabilities 5537 573 3354 636
22.2 Analysis of repayments
Repayable within the next year and thereafter:
* Next year 254 983 261 486
* Within two to five years 2 953 802 3305 281
® Thereafter 2583771 49 355
5792 556 3616122
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

\
22.

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (continued)

Loan details {(continued)

Unsecured

¢ Syndicated loan facilities
Citibank International plc and Commerzbank
International SA: Revolving credit facility
Royal Bank of Scotland: Term loan
Citibank International plc and Commerzbank
international SA: Term loan

Steinhoff International Holdings Limited has subordinated
shareholder loans due from Steinhoff Europe AG (Austria),
amounting to €220 million and due from Steinhoff Mobel
Holdings Alpha GmbH amounting to €56,3 million untit the
senior debt has been unconditionally and irrevocably

paid and discharged in full.

Domestic medium-term note

Note with a nominal value of R400 million and a coupon
rate of 9,5%. The effective interest rate is 9,35%. Interest is
payable semi-annually in arrears on 28 February and

31 August of each year, commencing on 31 August 2005.

Guaranteed registered bonds

These bonds are unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed, jointly and severally by Steinhoff Africa
Holdings (Proprietary) Limited and Steinhoff International
Holdings Limited.

Note purchase agreement: senior notes series A
senior notes series B
senior notes series C

Deferred payment — non-exiting vendors

Loan payable to vendors in respect of PG Bison Holdings
{Proprietary) Limited, either in cash or shares in Steinhoff
International Holdings Limited.

Rand Merchant Bank

Senior unsecured puttable bond amounting to €37,5 million
at 6,94% effective interest, payable semi-annually in arrears
in equal instalments. This bond was issued at a discount

of 16,3%. The puttable bond was acquired during the
current year.
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Facility
000

€235 000
£70 000

€175 000

$142 000
$142 500
€23 500

Maturity date

30 June 2008
30 June 2010

Repaid during year

31 August 2010

28 February 2008

15 March 2015
15 March 2012
15 March 2012

25 June 2007

Interest rate

EURIBOR + 0,55%
LIBOR + 0,50%

EURIBOR + 1,05%

9.34%

10% payable
semi-annually

EURIBOR + 0,88%
EURIBOR + 0,82%
4,10%

6%

2005
R'000

161 930
847 695

413 541

1 000 000

952 924
956 280
190 268

306 789

2004
R'000

1322 352

1 000 000

229 400

244 241
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

Acquired at
Opening acquisition of Additional Amounts Amounts Exchange Closing
balance subsidiary provision reversed differences balance
R’000 R'000 R'000 R’000 R'000 R'000 R’000

(R
23.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND

PROVISIONS (continued)

Provisions consist of:

Leave pay provision 78 985 3 200 83235 (67 467) (858) 4 054 101 149
Bonus provision 20 257 - 40 404 (18 112) (1 444) - 41105
Warranty provisions 32 952 - 22 530 (32 356) (357) 1728 24 497
Pension provision 24 838 212 399 - (21 109) - 6174 222 302
Buyback lease commitments - 10 364 1042 - (2 247) - 9159
Accident and insurance
fund provisions - 17 164 32533 (27 19) (739) - 21839
Gross incurred but not reported
reserve (IBNR) - 5721 2180 (1 589) - - 6312
Gross provision for unearned
premium - 54 692 15 372 (3 340) - - 66 724
Maintenance fund - 10 039 4553 - - - 14 592
Other - 21 864 6 824 (9 002) (3 996) - 15 690
157 032 335 443 208 673 (180 094) (9 641) 11 956 523 369

Provision for leave pay

The leave pay provision relates to vesting leave pay to which employees may become entitled on leaving the employment of the group. The provision arises

as employees render a service that increases their entitlement to future compensated leave and is calculated based on an employee’s total cost of employment.
The provision is utilised when employees become entitled to and are paid for the accumulated leave pay or utilise compensated leave due to them.

Provision for bonus
The provision for bonus consists of a performance-based bonus. The bonus payable is fixed by applying a specific formula based on the employees’ achievement
of performance targets. The employee must be in service on 30 June 2005 to qualify for the bonus.

Provision for warranty
The warranty provision represents management’s best estimate, based on past experience, of the group’s liability under warranties granted on products sold.

Provision for pensions
The prior year provision for pension related to the group’s obligation for a director of a company in Europe which was settled during the year. The current year
provision relates to the pension fund liability of a newly acquired subsidiary.

Property and buyback lease commitments
The property and buyback lease commitments relate to onerous property lease and buyback commitments, which have to be financed over a period ranging between
two and six years. The provision is based on the net present value of outstanding commitments.
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

25, RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)

25.1 Provident and pension funds (continued)
Defined benefit plan: Afcol Pension Fund (continued)
The effective date of the most recent actuarial valuation is 31 March 2001. At that date, in the opinion of the actuary, the defined benefit plan was found to be in a
sound financial position. The fund is actuarially valued at intervals of not more than three years. The 31 March 2004 valuation is being completed by the fund actuary.

The current contributions are calculated on the pensionable emoluments of members.
The following amounts resulted in a net loss/{gain) for the fund:

2005 2004
R’000 R‘000

Current service cost - 2 646
Net of interest and expected return on plan assets (4 534) (4 232)
Amortisation: unrecognised loss 6 485 234
Curtailment costs 39 788 -
Company contributions - (570)
Net loss/(gain) 41 739 (1 922)
The actual return on plan assets was R4 592 000 (2004: R11 615 000)

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group’s obligation to defined benefit retirement plans is:

Present value of funded obligations (631) (150 782)
Unrecognised actuarial gains - 43 643
Fair value of plan assets 46 404 194 651
Net asset 45773 87 512
Movements in the net assets in the current period were:

At beginning of year 87 512 85 590
Net (loss)/gain included in income (41 739) 1922
At end of year 45773 87 512

Surplus asset recognised
Current assets: other receivables and amounts due - 23332

During the current year, the group’s actuaries confirmed that significantly more historical information on former members was identified. As these members have a right
to a minimum benefit as outlined in the Pension Fund Act (Act No 24 of 1956) and regulations, it is unlikely that any surplus will be apportioned to the employer.
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

2005
%
. __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________]
25.  RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)
25.1 Provident and pension funds (continued)
Homestyle Pension Fund (continued)
Key assumptions used for all schemes combined

Discount rate 55
Rate of increase in salaries 3,9
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 2,9
Rate of increase in deferred pensions 2,9
Inflation assumption 2,9

25.2 Post-retirement medical benefits
The group provided certain post-retirement medical benefits by funding a portion of the medical aid contributions of certain retired members. These were charged
against income as incurred. In 2002, on adoption of the Statement of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, AC116: Employee Benefits, the group’s liability in
respect of this obligation was recorded. Through agreement with in-service and retired employees, the group came to a settlement in terms of which the present value
of future benefits will be settled in cash.

The total liability in respect of the post-retirement medical benefits was valued during 2002 by an independent actuary. The liability arose as a result of past and
current service as follows:

2005 2004
R’000 R'000
|
Accrued liability at beginning of year 7 202 8241
Less: Settlements (502) (1 039}
Accrued liability at end of year 6 700 7 202
At year end, this total unpaid liability was included in other payables and amounts due (note 23).
26,  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES ; o
26.1 Capital expenditure
Contracts for capital expenditure authorised 75 237 30 397
Capital expenditure authorised but not contracted for 218 170 184 699
Capital expenditure will be financed from existing facilities.
Plant,
equipment,
vehicles
Property and other Total
R'000 R’000 R'000

26.2 Amounts outstanding under operating lease agreements payable within the next year and thereafter

Next year 1041 003 90 892 1131895
Within two to five years 3488 535 128 520 3617 055
Thereafter 1345 351 6823 1352174
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

2005
R'000

2004
R'000

28. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Net income before taxation 1827 522 1056 935
Adjusted for:
Net profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (27 077) (6 514)
Fair value adjustment of biological assets (18 740) (14 429)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 435 568 214 302
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 824 38 592
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 2018 59 328
Other impairments 5 392 176
Stock write-offs 2 203 -
Investment income (220 160) (191 856)
Finance costs 385 888 268 694
Net profit on disposal of subsidiaries and businesses - (234)
Pension fund asset charge 23 332 1617
Negative goodwill released (5 497) -
Investment reserve released to sundry income (3 638) (1125)
Equalisation of operating lease payments - 16 456
Operating profit before working capital changes 2414 635 1441 942
Working capital changes:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (145 906) 26 061
Increase in accounts receivable (649 466) (705 188)
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable (255 845) 767 334
(Increase)/decrease in VAT receivable (78 158) 5 356
Increase in VAT payable 138 849 3860
Net changes in working capital (990 526) 97 423
Cash generated from operations 1424109 1 539 365
* Prior year figures have been restated to reflect the changes in the method of recognising operating lease costs.

29.  TAXATION PAID
Taxation payable at beginning of year (106 255) (21 026)
Foreign currency translation difference (2 883) 2 161
Taxation payable of subsidiaries disposed 952 -
Taxation payable of subsidiaries acquired (19 043) (77 315)
Current taxation expense per income statement (218 270) (127 555)
Taxation payable at end of year 144 416 106 255
Net taxation paid (201 083) (117 480)

T T e = e ey
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

Unitrans Homestyle Total Total
Limited Group plc Hukla Other 2005 2004
R’'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
30. NET CASH FLOW ON BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
{continued)
Fair value of assets and liabilities acquired
(brought forward) 1336 692 457 428 63 675 9 951 1867 746 1126 344
Net goodwill/(negative goodwill) at acquisition 161 556 609 444 (5 565) 4 639 770 074 113 287
Total consideration (1 498 248) (1 066 872) (58 110) (14 590) (2 637 820) (1239 631)
e Purchase price (910 292) (1 066 872) (58 110) (14 590) (2 049 864) (1 044 191)
* Investment in associate company which
became subsidiary (587 956) - —~ - (587 956) (195 440)
Cash and cash equivalents on hand at acquisition 391535 135 965 — 2436 529 936 112 021
Investment in associate companies which
became subsidiaries 587 956 - - - 587 956 195 440
Purchase consideration included in short-term liabilities - - - - - 191 246
Purchase consideration included in long-term liabilities - - - - - 229 400
Purchase consideration included in accounts receivable - - - - - (38 009)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries (518 757) (930 907) (58 110) (12 154) (1 519 928) (549 533)
Additional cash flow on prior year acquisition - - - (468) (468) -
(518 757) (930 907) (58 110) (12 622) {1 520 396) (549 533)

The carrying value of identifiable assets and liabilities immediately prior to the acquisition were:

Unitrans Homestyle
Limited Group plc Hukla
R'000 R'000 R'000
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 1265772 613197 34 892
Inventories 847 277 482 252 23219
Accounts receivable 795 257 300 105 -
Cash on hand 391535 160 618 -
Deferred taxation asset 26 941 133 842 -
Trademarks - - -
Investments and loans 80717 1659 -
Investment in associates 42 385 - -
Liabilities
Long-term liabilities (82 366) - -
Trade payables (1052 722) (1 533 458) -
Deferred taxation liabilities (153 560) - -
Taxation payable (19 043) (330 839) -
Foreign currency liability - (24 654) -
Short-term loans (526 763) - -
Minority interest (42 247) - -
Carrying value of assets and liabilities acquired 1573189 (197 278) 58 111
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

2005 2004
R'000 R'000
(R
33.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with banks as well as near-cash instruments. Bank overdrafts
are only included where the group has a legal right of set-off due to cash management arrangements. Cash and cash
equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprise the following balance sheet amounts:

Funds on call and deposits 388 075 1532418
Bank balances and cash 4 416 550 2123964
Bank overdrafts — _
Bank overdrafts per balance sheet {731 948) (10 677)
Less: bank overdrafts included in financing activities 731 948 10 677
Net foreign currency assets 112 672 60

4 917 297 3 656 442

Included in cash and cash equivalents are amounts of R1 380 million (2004: R2 795 million) committed as security for future acquisitions and/or expenses of the group.

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related party relationships exist between shareholders, subsidiaries, joint venture companies and associate companies within the group. These transactions are
concluded at arm’s length in the normal course of business and include transactions as a result of the group-wide treasury management of foreign currency movements.
Alf material intergroup transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

34.1 Joint venture companies and associate companies
Details of investments in associate companies and joint venture companies are disclosed in notes 10 and 11 respectively.

34.2 Interests of directors and officers in contracts
All directors and officers of the company have, other than described below, confirmed that they had no interest in any contract of significance with the company or any
of its subsidiary companies, which could have resulted in a conflict of interest during the year.

Al directors and officers of the company have disclosed all material interests in contracts of significance with the company or any of its subsidiaries, which could have

resulted in a conflict of interest. During the year under review, contracts were concluded with:

* Mayfair Speculators (Proprietary) Limited (Mayfair) (of which MJ Jooste is a director) placed funds in a call account with group companies. At year end all deposits
were repaid. During the year, interest in the amount of approximately R1,7 million was paid to Mayfair in respect of these deposits.

» BCM Holdings (Proprietary) Limited (BCM) {of which CE Daun is a director) and its subsidiary and associate companies provided springs and bedding components to
various group companies totalling approximately R69 million.

» At 30 June 2005, the group had an investment in A ordinary shares in BCM Holdings amounting to R52 million. in terms of the dividend formula relating to the
shares, an amount of R9,8 million has been accrued and remains outstanding at 30 June 2005. in addition, the group extended a loan to BCM during the year, on
which market-related interest was earned. The loan was repaid prior to the year end.

* Hoffman Attorneys (of which SJ Grobler is a partner) provided legal services to group companies in the amount of approximately 81,3 million.

¢ PSG Capital Limited and associated companies (of which JM Mouton and MJ Jooste are directors) acted as sponsor and advisor to the group as well as to Unitrans
Limited in respect of which fees were paid totalling approximately R6,3 million.

All the contracts were concluded at arm’s length in the normal course of business at market-related terms no more favourable than to any third party.

34.3 Related interests of directors and officers in share capital
Details have been included in the directors’ report.

[ ——= =

= pe—— — —
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

36. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
To rationalise and achieve economies of scale, a number of business divisions, both locally and internationally, were closed:

Cost of discontinuance

Date of initial Date discontinuance 2005 2004
discontinuance Division Business completed R’000 R'000
L

15 July 2003 Pionki SP.zo.o. Pine furniture manufacturer 31 December 2004 - 38132
5 April 2004 Steinhoff Logistic GmbH Transport 30 June 2004 - 10 835
30 April 2004 Dormira GmbH Bedding manufacturer 30 June 2004 - 2703
31 March 2004 Timber division of AS Marshall Holdings

(Proprietary) Limited Case goods manufacturer 30 June 2004 - 5693
20 February 2004  Gommagomma Furniture (Proprietary) Limited

production facility Show wood manufacturer 30 June 2004 - 12 289
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Notice of annual general meeting for the year ended 30 June 2005

Notice is hereby given that the annual general meeting of the shareholders of Steinhoff International Holdings Limited (the company) will be held at 08:00 in the main
boardroom of the company, 28 Sixth Street, Wynberg, Sandton, on Friday, 25 November 2005, for the purpose of dealing with the business and considering and, if deemed
fit, passing, with or without modification, the resolutions set out below:

Ordinary business
1. To adopt and approve the annual financial statements of Steinhoff International Holdings (the company) for the year ended 30 June 2005 together with the report of
the directors and the auditors thereon.

2. To reappoint Messrs Deloitte & Touche of Pretoria as auditors of the company as contemplated under section 270 of the Companies Act.

3.1 To ratify and approve remuneration and emoluments paid by the company to its directors during the year ended 30 June 2005 as set out in note 1.2 to the annual
financia! statements (at page 80 thereof).

3.2 To re-elect the following directors (all eligible and available for reappointment) JNS du Plessis, JF Mouton, FJ Nef and DM van der Merwe. (Curriculum vitae — see
pages 6 and 9.)

3.3 Subject to special resolution 1 below being passed, Mr DE Ackerman is similarly re-elected as director of the company. (Curriculum vitae - see page 8.)
To transact any other business capable of being transacted at an annual general meeting.

Special resolution number 1
Amendment of the articles of association:
41 Resolved that the articles of association of the company be amended in that Article 50.9 be included to read as follows:

“50.9 Save for Article 60.7, any director older that 71 years of age, shall retire from office annually at every general meeting.”
42 Resolved further that Article 60.7 of the articles of association of the company is hereby amended to read as follows:

the expression “becomes 71 years of age” is deleted in its entirety and substituted with the expression

"becomes 76 years of age.”

Reason for and effect of the special resolution

The reason for this resolution is to create a basis for the election and, where appropriate and/or desirable, re-election of directors that reach retirement age as presently
stipulated in the articles of association of the company. The intention is to effect an appropriate amendment of the present retirement age of board members to 75. Some
of the present board members, notably Mr DE Ackerman, will reach retirement age in the near future. A shortage of suitable qualified persons with the requisite skills and
experience levels in the field of endeavour engaged in by the company is a challenge faced by the company. Moreover, if regard is had to practices on other similar boards
and also, by way of example, to retirement ages of judges of the High Court, it seems clear that the proposed amendment is justifiable. The effect of the resolution will be
that if passed, it will address a potential risk and will ensure that the company will retain its ability to procure the services of outstanding candidates to serve on its board.
The pool of directors thus becoming {and/or remaining) available will thereby be enhanced. Shareholders will have the comfort, as a result thereof, that persons with an
appropriate level of experience in the specialised provinces of expertise at stake, may be elected and/or re-elected to serve as board members.
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Notice of annual general meeting for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

101.2.2

101.2.3

101.2.4

101.2.5

101.2.6

101.2.7

101.2.8

Each preference share shall confer on the holder thereof the right to a return of capital on the winding-up of the company equal to the deemed
value of the preference shares then in issue divided by the number of preference shares in issue in priority to any payment in respect of any
other class of shares in the capital of the company not ranking prior to or pari passu with the preference share.

Each preference share shall confer on the holder thereof the right to receive out of the profits of the company, a non-cumulative preference cash
dividend which it shall determine to distribute in priority to any payment of dividends to the holders of any other class of shares in the capital of
the company not ranking prior to or pari passu with the preference shares, the preference dividend calculated in accordance with the following
formula, provided such right shall be subject to the company declaring such dividend in the manner set out in Article 101 and in accordance
with these Articles:

a=bx(c+365xd

in which formula:

a = such preference dividend;

b = the deemed value of a preference share;

¢ = the preference dividend rate; and

the number of days in the dividend period,

[oN
il

If the preference dividend rate changes during any particular dividend period the preference dividend for such dividend period shall be
calculated, in terms of the formula contained in this Article 101.2.3, on the basis that the period prior to such change is one dividend period
and the interest subsequent to such change is another dividend period and that the preference dividend for the entire dividend period is the
aggregate of the two amounts thus calculated.

The preference dividend shall it declared:

101.2.4.1  accrue on the preference dividend calculation date, calculated in accordance with Article 101.2.3;

101.2.4.2 be payable on the preference dividend payment date; and

101.2.4.3 failing payment by the relevant preference dividend payment date, be considered to be in arrears.

If a preference dividend is not declared by the company in respect of the period to which such preference dividend calculation date relates, the
preference dividend shall not accumulate and will accordingly never become payable by the company whether in preference to payments or
any other class of shares in the company or otherwise. The company will not declare an ordinary dividend in respect of the period in question
unless the preference dividend for such period has been declared in full.

Any arrear preference dividend, declared but not paid, shall accumulate. Accordingly, any outstanding preference dividend shall be increased by
an amount equal to interest calculated on the unpaid preference dividend at the relevant prime rate, compounded monthly from the relevant
preference dividend calculation date until the date of payment thereof and be paid by the company in preference to payments to any other
class of shares in the company.

Payment of any preference dividend and/or accumulated outstanding preference dividend due by the company shall be made by cheque sent
by the company by registered post at the risk of the holder of the preference share concerned, as recorded in the register of shareholders, or at
the option of the registered holder, to that holder’s commercial bank which has been nominated in writing, for credit to an account nominated
in writing by such holder at least 7 (seven) business days prior to such aforementioned amounts becoming payable, or at the option of a
dematerialised registered holder, in accordance with the relevant custody agreement between such holder and his Central Securities Depository
Participant (CSDP) or broker as a fully electronic share transaction.

If, as a result of any amendment to the Income Tax Act which is of general application to all corporate taxpayers, the company becomes entitled
to deduct (from its gross income and in determining its taxable income) the preference dividends or any portion of those dividends, the
preference dividend rate shall be increased by such a percentage as will place the company, if it declares and pays dividends on the preference
shares at such increased preference dividend rate, in the same net after tax position as it would have been in had the applicable amendment to
the Income Tax Act not been made (and had the preference dividend rate accordingly not been increased). The company shall be entitled to
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Notice of annual general meeting for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

Ordinary resolution number 2
7.2 Resolved that, subject to the listing requirements of the JSE relating to a general authority of directors to issue shares for cash, the directors of the company be

and they are hereby authorised for a period of 15 (fifteen) months from the date of this meeting or until the date of the company’s next annual meeting to issue

56 000 000 ordinary shares in the capital of the company for cash in accordance with the requirements set out in paragraph 5.52 of the listing requirements of the

JSE as follows:

7.2.1 the relevant securities to be issued under such authority must be of a class already in issue;

7.2.2 the securities must be issued to public shareholders as defined by the JSEs listing requirements and not to related parties;

7.2.3 issues for cash may not exceed 15% of the issued number of securities in issue in any one financial year;

7.2.4  the maximum discount at which such securities may be issued may not exceed 10% of the weighted average traded price of those securities during the
30 business days preceding the date on which the price of the issue is determined or agreed by the directors; and

7.2.5 once the company has issued on a cumulative basis within a financial year, 5% or more of the number of securities in issue prior to that issue, the company
will publish an announcement containing the full details for the issue, including the average discount to the weighted average traded price over the
30 day period prior to the date the price was determined or agreed and the effect of the issue on net asset value, net tangible asset value and headline
earnings per share.

7.3 Subject to the renewal of the general authority proposed in terms of ordinary resolution number 1, and in terms of the requirements of the JSE, shareholders to
grant a waiver of any pre-emptive rights to which ordinary shareholders may be entitled in favour of the directors for the allotment and issue of ordinary shares in
the capital of the company for cash other than in the normal course by way of a rights offer or a claw-back offer or pursuant to the company’s share schemes or
acquisitions utilising such securities as currency to discharge the purchase consideration.

The proposed resolution represents less than 5% of the issued capital of the company.

A 75% majority of votes cast by those shareholders present or represented and voting at the general meeting will be required in order for paragraph 7.2 of
ordinary resolution number 2 to become effective.

Ordinary resolution number 3
8. Resolved that, subject and in accordance with the requirements of the JSE:
8.1 the company places and reserves 103 469 553 unissued ordinary shares in the company (which number constitutes less than 10% of the company’s issued share
capital) at the disposal of the directors for the continued implementation of the Steinhoff international Incentive Schemes.

Special resolution number 4
9. Resolved that, subject to paragraphs 5.72, 5.73 and 5.74 of the listing requirements of the JSE, the board of directors be authorised, up to and including the date of
the following annual general meeting, to approve as a general authority the purchase of its own shares by the company or a subsidiary provided that:
9.1 this authority shall not extend beyond 15 (fifteen) months from the date of this meeting or until the date of the company’s next annual general meeting whichever
is the sooner;
9.2 this authority be limited to a maximum of 20% of the issued share capital of that class in one financial year;
9.3 repurchases shall not be made at a price more than 10% above the weighted average of the market value of the securities traded for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of repurchase (on which the transaction was agreed), subject to the provisions of the Act and the requirements of the JSE;
9.4 the repurchase of securities being implemented through the order book operated by the JSE trading system (“open market") and without any prior
understanding or arrangement with any counterparty; and
9.5  a certificate by the company’s sponsor in terms of paragraph 2.12 of the listing requirements of the JSE confirming the statements by the directors referred to
hereunder in this notice convening the meeting, be issued before commencement of repurchase.
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Notice of annual general meeting for the year ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

Ordinary resolution number 5

11.  Resolved that the board of directors be and is hereby authorised in terms of Article 26.2 of the articles of association of the company to create and issue convertible
debentures, debenture stock, bonds or other convertible instruments in the capital of the company, subject to such conversion and other terms and conditions as it may
determine in its sole and absolute discretion but subject further at all times to the rules and requirements of the JSE.

Authority

12.  Subject to the passing of special resolutions numbers 1, 2, 3 and 4 and ordinary resolutions numbers 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 contained in the notice convening this annual
general meeting, any director or secretary of the company, for the time being, be and is hereby authorised to take all such steps and sign all such documents and to do
all such acts, matters and things for and on behalf of the company as may be necessary to give effect to the special and ordinary resolutions passed at this general
meeting.

Voting

Each shareholder, whether present in person or by proxy, is entitled to attend and vote at the general meeting. A form of proxy in which is set out the relevant instructions for
its completion is enclosed for use by any shareholder who is unable to attend the general meeting but wishes to be represented thereat. If you have dematerialised your
shares with a Central Securities Depository Participant (CSDP) or broker you must arrange with them to provide you with the necessary authorisation to attend the general
meeting or you must instruct them as to how you wish to vote in this regard. This must be done in terms of the agreement entered into between you and the CSDP or broker.

Any shareholder who completes and lodges a form of proxy will not be precluded frem attending and voting at the general meeting to the exclusion of the proxy appointed
by him.

Each shareholder is entitled to appoint one or more proxies (who need not be shareholders of the company) to attend, speak and vote in his/her stead. On a show of hands
every shareholder who is present in person or by proxy shall have one vote and, on a poll, every shareholder present in person or by proxy shall have one vote for each share
held by him/her. The forms of proxy should be completed and forwarded to reach the offices of the company's transfer secretaries or the company secretary at the address
given below by not later than 17:00 on Tuesday, 22 November 2005.

By order of the board

SJ Grobler
Company secretary
2 November 2005

Registered office

28 Sixth Street

Wynberg

Sandton

2090

(PO Box 1955, Bramley, 2018)
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Notes to the proxy

1. A Steinhoff shareholder may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternative proxies of his/her choice in the space(s) provided, with or without deleting
the chairman of the general meeting, but any such deletion must be initialled by the Steinhoff shareholder concerned. The person whose name appears first on the form
of proxy and has not been deleted will be entitled to act as proxy to the exclusion of those whose names follow.

2. A Steinhoff shareholder’s instructions to the proxy must be shown by indicating, in the appropriate boxes provided, the manner in which that Steinhoff shareholder wishes
to vote by inserting an "X” in the relevant box, unless a shareholder wishes to split his/her votes in which case the relevant numbers of shares to be so voted must be
indicated in the proxy to vote or abstain from voting at the general meeting as he/she deems fit in respect of all the Steinhoff shareholder’s votes exercisable thereat.

A Steinhoff shareholder or his/her proxy is not obliged to use all the votes exercisable by the Steinhoff shareholder or his/her proxy, but the total of the votes cast and in
respect whereof abstention is recorded may not exceed the total of the votes exercisable by the Steinhoff shareholder or by his/her proxy. Should a shareholder fail to
complete the number of shares held, it will be deemed to have exercised the vote in respect of all shares held as recorded in the register.

3. Any shareholder who holds shares through a nominee or in dematerialised form may use this proxy to advise their nominee/broker/Central Security Depository
Participant (CSDP) of their voting instructions. However, should such member wish to attend the meeting, they need to request their CSDP, broker or nominee
to provide them with the necessary authority in terms of the agreement governing their relationship.

4. Forms of proxy and any power of attorney by virtue of which such proxy is signed (or a notarially certified copy of such power of attorney) must be lodged at or posted
to the company's transfer secretaries or delivered to the company secretary, to be received by not later than 17:00 on Tuesday, 22 November 2005.

5. Any alteration or correction made to this form of proxy must be initialled by the signatory/ies.

6. Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this form of proxy in a representative capacity must be attached to this form of proxy unless
previously recorded by the company’s transfer secretaries or waived by the chairman of the general meeting.

7. The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant Steinhoff shareholders from attending the general meeting and speaking and voting
in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms hereof, should such Steinhoff shareholder wish to do so.

8.  No facility currently exists for receiving forms of proxy by e-mail.
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Notes to voting form

1. Any shareholder who holds shares through a nominee or in dematerialised form must use this voting instruction form to advise their nominee/broker/Central Security
Depository Participant (CSDP) of their voting instructions and should not use the proxy form. However, should such member wish to attend the meeting, they will need to
request their CSDP, broker or nominee to provide them with the necessary authority in terms of the agreement governing their relationship.

2. A shareholder's instructions to the CSDP/broker must be shown by indicating, in the appropriate boxes provided, the manner in which that shareholder wishes to vote by
inserting an “X" in the relevant box, unless a shareholder wishes to split his/her votes in which case the relevant numbers of shares to be so voted must be indicated in
the form to vote or abstain from voting at the general meeting as he/she deems fit in respect of all the Steinhoff shareholder’s votes exercisable thereat. A shareholder is
not obliged to use all the votes exercisable by the shareholder, but the total of the votes cast and in respect whereof abstention is recorded may not exceed the total of
the votes exercisable by the Steinhoff shareholder. Should a shareholder fail to complete the number of shares held, it will be deemed to have exercised the vote in
respect of all shares held as recorded in the relevant register.

3. Voting instruction forms and power of attorney by virtue of which such instructions are signed (or a notarially certified copy of such power of attorney) must be sent to
the CSDP or broker in terms of the agreements governing their relationship and preferably with a copy to be lodged at or posted to the company’s transfer secretaries
or delivered or faxed to the company secretary, the latter to be received by not later than 17:00 on Tuesday, 22 November 2005.

4.  Any alteration or correction made to this form must be initialled by the signatory/ies.

5. Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this form in a representative capacity must be attached to this form unless previously recorded by
the CSDP/broker or waived.

6. No facility currently exists for receiving these forms of instruction by e-mail.
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STEINHOFF INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

to the members of Steinhoff International Holdings Limited

Introduction

We have audited the annual financial statements of Steinhoff International Holdings Limited, set out on pages
1 to 18 for the year ended 30 June 2005. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s
directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Scope

We conducted our audit in accordance with statements of South African Auditing Standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit includes:

* examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;
* assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and

* evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Audit opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position of the
company at 30 June 2005 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and in the manner
required by the Companies Act in South Africa.

Clas s 7.

Chartered Accountants (SA)
Registered Accountants and Auditors
Pretoria

12 September 2005

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

for the year ended 30 June 2005

The directors have pieasure in presenting the annual financial statements of the company for the year ended
30 June 2005. Group annual financial statements have been issued separately.

NATURE OF BUSINESS

Steinhoff International Holdings Limited (Steinhoff) is a holding company investing predominantly in
household goods and related industries. Steinhoff is an investment company holding interest in various
subsidiaries which are globally-integrated lifestyle suppliers that manufacture, warehouse, retail and
distribute household goods, retail motor vehicles and also provide financial and management services to
group companies.

DIVIDENDS

The directors have resolved to declare a capital distribution from share premium, subject to approval at the
annual general meeting scheduled to take place on 25 November 2005, of 30 cents per share (2004: dividend
of 22 cents per share), payable on 12 December 2005 to those shareholders recorded in the books of the
company at the close of business on 9 December 2005.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Effective

Issued share shareholding

capital (%)

The company’s principal subsidiary is Steinhoff Investment Holdings Limited R75 000 100
Steinhoff Investment Holdings Limited’s principal subsidiaries are:

Steinhoff Africa Holdings (Proprietary} Limited and its subsidiaries R35 700 100

Steinhoff Mébel Holdings Alpha GmbH and its subsidiaries €35 790 100



STEINHOFF INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

for the year ended 30 June 2005

SHARE CAPITAL
The company’s authorised share capital of R7 500 000, divided into 1 500 000 000 ordinary shares of 0,5 cents
each, remained unchanged during the year. The following ordinary shares were issued during the year:

Number
Date of shares Consideration
19 October 2004 1496 770 Issued to employees

CONTRACTS
Other than disclosed in note 21, no contracts in which directors and officers of the company had an interest
and that significantly affected the affairs or business of the company were entered into during the year.

POST-BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
No post balance sheet events have been identified.

DIRECTORATE

There have been no changes to the directors during the current year. The executive directors in office at the
financial year-end and date of this report, were:

Bruno Ewald Steinhoff (German) - Chairman

Markus Johannes Jooste — Chief Executive Officer

Karel Johan Grove

Fredrik Johannes Nel — Financial Director

Daniél Maree van der Merwe

Johannes Henoch Neethling van der Merwe — Chief Financial Officer

Rodney Howard Walker (Australian)

The non-executive directors in office at the financial year-end and date of this report were:
Dirk Emil Ackerman®

Claas Edmund Daun (German)*

Johannes Nicolaas Stephanus du Plessis*

Dr Deenadayalen Konar*

Johannes Fredericus Mouton*

Dr Franklin Abraham Sonn*

Norbert Walter Steinhoff (German)

* Independent non-executive directors

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDING

At 30 June 2005 the present directors of the company held direct and indirect interests in 191 282 875
(2004: 189 836 242) or 16,9% (2004: 16,8%) of the company’s issued ordinary shares. There have been no
changes to directors’ shareholding between year end and the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The group complies with the JSE Limited (JSE) Listing Requirements and in all material respects with the
Code of Corporate Practice and Conduct published in the King Il Report on Corporate Governance.

SECRETARY

Stephanus Johannes Grobler acts as secretary to the company.
BUSINESS ADDRESS POSTAL ADDRESS
28 Sixth Street PO Box 1955
Wynberg Bramley

2090 2018




STEINHOFF INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

for the year ended 30 June 2005

APPROVAL OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

It is the directors’ responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs
of the company. The external auditors are responsibie for independently auditing and reporting on the
financial statements.

The directors are also responsible for the systems of internal control. These are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the reliability of the financial statements, and to adequately
safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of assets, and to prevent and detect material misstatement and
loss. The systems are implemented and monitored by suitably trained personnel with an appropriate
segregation of authority and duties. Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that any
material breakdown in the functioning of these controls, procedures and systems has occurred during the
year under review.

The financial statements set out in this report have been prepared by management on the basis of
appropriate accounting policies which have been consistently applied and which are supported by prudent
judgements and estimates. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African
Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.

The directors have reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in
operation for the foreseeable future, and the annual financial statements have therefore been prepared on a
going concern basis.

The annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005, which appear on pages 1 to 18 were
approved by the board and signed on its behalf on 12 September 2005.

Bruno Ewald Steinhoff Markus Johannes Jooste
Executive Chairman Executive Director

Secretary certification

| certify, in accordance with Section 268 G{d) of the Companies Act, 1973, as amended (“the Act”) that the
company has lodged with the Registrar of Companies all such returns as are required for a public company
in terms of the Act and that all such returns are true, correct and up to date.

Stephanus Johannes Grobler
Company Secretary




STEINHOFF INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 30 June 2005

Notes 2005 2004
R’000 R’000

Sundry income 11 236 656 8 256
Salaries and wages - (954)
Other (expenses)/income (27 606) 78 657
Operating income 1 11 209 050 85 959
Finance costs 2 (18 516) (835 713)
Income from investments 3 265 739 69 043
Profit before taxation 11 456 273 119 289
Taxation 4 (3761) (8 499)
Net profit for the year 11 452 512 110 790
BALANCE SHEET
as at 30 June 2005

Notes 2005 2004

R’000 R’C00

ASSETS
Non-current assets 15 501 337 4 168 929
Equipment 5 9 12
Interest in subsidiary companies 6 15 463 449 4101 821
Loans receivable 7 37 723 65 563
Deferred taxation asset 8 156 1533
Current assets 120 908 18 985
Accounts receivable 9 51125 18 330
VAT receivable 75 151
Bank balances and cash 68 312 504
Taxation receivable 1 396 -
TOTAL ASSETS 15 622 245 4 187 914
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves 14 559 460 3 358 965
Share capital and premium 10 3224 445 3 226 829
Reserves 11 11 335 015 132 136
Non-current liabilities
Long-term liabilities 12 250 000 244 241
Current liabilities 812 785 584 708
Accounts payable 13 576 785 582 909
Taxation payable - 1799
Bank overdrafts 236 000 -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 15 622 245 4187 914




STEINHOFF INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 30 June 2005

Share
capital and Distributable
premium reserves Total

R’000 R’000 R’000
Batance at 30 June 2003 2291 277 54 764 2 346 041
Profit for the year - 110 790 110 790
Dividends paid - (33 418) (33 418)
Issue of share capital 935 552 - 935 552
Balance at 30 June 2004 3 226 829 132 136 3 358 965
Profit for the year - 11 452 512 11 452 512
Dividends paid - (249 633) {249 633)
Issue of share capital* (2 384) - (2 384)
Balance at 30 June 2005 3 224 445 11 335 015 14 559 460
* Includes an amount of R2 391 000 relating to listing expenses
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 30 June 2005

Notes 2005 2004

R’000 R'000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash (utilised in)/generated from operations 16 (12 678) 603 505
Dividends received 237 365 31 028
Interest received 27 113 38 015
Interest paid (18 516) (35 713)
Dividends paid (249 487) (33 418)
Taxation paid 17 (5 579) (720)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (21 782) 602 697
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net decrease/(increase) in loan receivable 18 29108 (41 334)
Net cash outflow from investments in subsidiaries (181 273) (541 969)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (152 165) (583 303)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net cash flow on issue of share capital 19 (4) 920 329
Increase/(decrease) in bank overdraft 236 000 (323 000)
Net increase/(decrease) in long-term liabilities 5759 (27 656)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 241 755 569 673
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 67 808 589 067
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 504 (588 563)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 20 68 312 504




STEINHOFF INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

for the year ended 30 June 2005

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with South African Statements of Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice on the historical cost basis and going concern principle except for certain
financial instruments which are carried at fair value or amortised cost as appropriate, and incorporate the
following principal accounting policies which have been consistently applied in all material respects, except
where otherwise stated.

Presentation of financial statements
These financial statements are presented in South African Rands and are for the twelve-month period ended
30 June 2005.

Unless otherwise stated, all amounts in the annual financial statements are shown rounded off to the nearest
R1 000.

Equipment
Equipment is stated at historical cost to the company, less accumulated depreciation.

The gross carrying amount of equipment is initially measured using the historical cost basis of accounting.
Subseguent expenditure relating to an item of equipment is capitalised to the carrying amount of the asset
when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance
of the item concerned, will flow to the enterprise. All other subsequent expenditures are recognised as
expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided on the reducing balance basis at rates which will reduce the book values to
estimated residual values over the expected useful lives of the assets. The method and rates used are
determined by conditions in the relevant industry. Depreciation is calculated as follows:

Computer equipment and software 25%

Interest in subsidiary companies
Interest in subsidiary companies is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of assets stated in the balance sheet, other than inventories and deferred tax assets,
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated as the higher of the net selling price and
its value in use. An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement whenever the carrying amount
exceeds the recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the expected future cash flows are discounted to their present value that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that
does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

A previously recognised impairment loss is only reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount; however, not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
‘have been determined (net of depreciation and amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised in
previous years.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash and bank and near-cash financial instruments. Bank
overdrafts are only included where the company has a legal right of setoff due to cash management
arrangements. Also refer toa policies on financial instruments below.




STEINHOFF INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

for the year ended 30 June 2005

Taxation ‘

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowed. It is calculated using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of
temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding basis used in the computation of taxable income.

In general, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities, which affects
neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit at the time of the transaction. Deferred tax assets are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realised.

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement except when it relates to items credited or
charged directly in equity, in which case deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than the reporting currency are initially recorded at the rates of exchange
ruling on the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in such currencies are
re-translated at the rates ruling on the balance sheet date. Profits and losses arising on foreign exchange
currencies are dealt with in the income statement.

In order to manage its exposure to foreign exchange risks, the company enters into currency forward
contracts. Unrealised gains and losses arising on fair valuing currency forward contracts for identified
exposures are charged to income and the resultant foreign exchange asset or liability recognised in the
balance sheet.

Revenue recognition

Interest

Interest revenue is recognised on a time-proportion basis by reference to the principal outstanding debt and
at the interest rate applicable.

Dividend income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive payment has been established.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the company’s balance sheet when the company
becomes a party to contractual provisions of the instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition these
instruments are measured as set out below.

Financial assets
The company’s principal financial assets are loans receivable, accounts receivable and bank and cash
balances:

Loans receivable
Loans receivable originated by the company are stated at amortised cost.

Accounts receivable

Trade and other receivables originated by the company are stated at their amortised cost less a provision for
impairment. An estimate of doubtful debts is made based on a review of all outstanding amounts at balance
sheet date. Bad debts are written off during the period in which they are identified. Due to the short-term
nature of the company’s receivables, amortised cost approximates its fair value.

Funds on call and deposit and bank and cash balances
Cash on hand is measured at its face value.




STEINHOFF INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 30 June 2005

Deposits held on call and investments in money market instruments are classified as loans originated by
the company and carried at amortised cost. Due to the short-term nature of these, the amortised cost
approximates its fair value.

Financial liabilities
The company'’s principal financial liabilities are interest-bearing debt, accounts payable and bank borrowings.

Interest-bearing debt
Interest-bearing debt is recognised at amortised cost, namely original debt less principal payments and
amortisations.

Bank overdraft

Bank borrowings, consisting of interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs. Finance costs, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption,
are accounted for on an accrual basis and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent
that they are not settled in the period in which they arise.

Accounts payable
Trade and other payables are stated at amortised cost. Due to the short-term nature of the company’s trade
and other payables, the cost approximates its fair value.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

De-recognition

Financial assets (or a portion thereof) are de-recognised when the company realises the rights to the benefits
specified in the contract, the rights expire or the company surrenders or otherwise loses control of the
contractual rights that comprise the financiai asset. On de-recognition, the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and proceeds receivable and any prior adjustment to reflect fair value that had
been reported in equity are included in profit and loss for the period.

Financial liabilities (or a portion thereof) are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. On de-recognition, the difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability, including related unamortised costs, and amount paid for it are included in profit and loss
for the period.

Fair value methods and assumptions
The fair values of financial instruments traded in an organised financial market are measured at the applicable
quoted prices, adjusted for any transaction costs necessary to realise the assets or settle the liabilities.

The fair value of financial instruments not traded in an organised financial market, is determined using a
variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risk existing at balance sheet
date, including independent appraisals and discounted cash flow methods. The fair value determined is
adjusted for any transaction costs necessary to realise the assets or settle the liabilities.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to
approximate their fair values due to the short-term trading cycle of these items.

Offset

Where a legally enforceable right of offset exists for recognised financial assets and financial liabilities, and
there is an intention to settle the liability and realise the asset simultaneously, or to settle on a net basis, all
related financial effects are offset.




STEINHOFF INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2005

2005 2004
R’000 R’000
1. OPERATING INCOME
Operating income is stated after taking account of the following items:
1.1 Auditors’ remuneration
¢ Audit fees 501 491
1.2 Directors’ emoluments
Executive directors - remuneration
Company
contri-
bution
and
Total expense
Basic Basic Basic basic allow- Deemed
salaries salaries salaries salaries Bonus ances interest Total
2005 €000 AU$'000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
BE Steinhoff 840 - - 6 644 - - - 6 644
MJ Jooste 750 - - 5935 2 000 427 - 8 362
KJ Grove - - 1806 1806 1 500 568 116 3990
FJ Nel 40 - 801 1118 650 130 - 1 898
DM van der Merwe - - 2 624 2624 2 000 376 - 5000
JHN van der Merwe 382 - - 3019 2 000 163 - 5182
RH Walker - 477 - 2 262 - 55 - 2 317
2012 477 5231 23408 8 150 1719 116 33 393
Company
contri-
bution
and
Total expense
Basic Basic Basic basic allow-
salaries salaries salaries salaries ances Total
2004 €000 AU$’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
BE Steinhoff 725 - - 5956 - 5 956
MJ Jooste 660 - - 5421 324 5745
FJ Nel 35 - 764 1 051 108 1159
DM van der Merwe - - 2 229 2 229 271 2 500
JHN van der Merwe 320 - - 2 628 124 2752
RH Walker - 285 53 1402 26 1428
1 740 285 3046 18687 853 19540
Executive directors - share rights
Subsequent offers Offers
Initial offer July 2000 to July 2001 to awarded in
September June June December
Offer date 1998 2001 2002 2003 Total
BE Steinhoff - 179 700 41 040 - 220 740
MdJ Jooste - 179 700 41 040 4 586 758 4 807 498
KJ Grove - 175 940 41 040 - 216 980
FJ Nel - 135 000 36 480 940 905 1112 385
DM van der Merwe - 179 700 41 040 1 902 588 2123 328
JHN van der Merwe - 135 000 36 480 2 195 091 2 366 571
- 985 040 237 120 9 625 342 10 847 502




STEINHOFF INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

for the year ended 30 June 2005

1.2 Directors’ emoluments (continued)
In terms of the share incentive scheme approved in general meeting and implemented on and since
listing the company in 1998, rights were allocated in terms of a deferred delivery scheme. All initial
offers were at nominal value and subsequent offers were at 540 cents and at 528 cents per share
respectively. The deferred delivery date is three years from the offer date, maturing at 20% per annum.

At the annual general meeting on 1 December 2003, a new share incentive scheme was approved and

implemented. These rights were allocated at effectively nominal value of 0,5¢ and will mature in 1/3 (one-

third) tranches per annum from the third anniversary of the effective date, provided the following
performance criteria have been achieved:

(@ a compound growth in headline earnings per share (HEPS) of the company equal to or exceeding
the weighted average growth of the companies included in, and comprising the INDI 25 Index
(INDI25) over a three—year period from the effective date: and

(b} the volume weighted average traded share price of the company over the 30 trading days
immediately preceding the date of measurement (the measurement date) to exceed the result of
the following formula, [{(a~b)+ b}+1] x ¢
where
a = the INDI 25 at the measurement date
b = the INDI 25 at the effective date
¢ = the volume weighted average traded share price of the company for the 30 trading days
immediately preceding the effective date.

In the event of the criteria not being satisfied by the third anniversary of the effective date, the rights
will be extended to the following years on a cumulative basis, provided however that if both the criteria
are not met by the end of the financial year in which the fifth anniversary of the effective date occurs,
all rights will lapse and neither the shares (nor any of them) nor any amount will be due to any
participant.

The rights disclosed above reflect the balance of unmatured rights at year end.

2005 2004
R’000 R’000
Non-executive directors - remuneration
Fees as directors
DE Ackerman 260 220
CE Daun* 145 120
JNS du Plessis 251 190
KJ Grove* # 145 120
D Konar 290 240
JF Mouton” 200 170
FA Sonn 195 160
NW Steinhoff 145 1824
NW Steinhoff (pension as from 1 July 2004, €180 000) 1424 -
Fees for services
D Konar 650 -
3705 3 044

* Paid to varfous entities as management fees
# Became an executive director during 2005




STEINHOFF INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2005

1.2 Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Non-executive directors — share rights
Subsequent offers
Initial offer July 2000 to July 2001 to
September June June Total
Offer date 1998 2001 2002
DE Ackerman - 179 700 41 040 220 740
CE Daun - 179 700 41 040 220 740
D Konar - 179 040 41 040 220 080
NW Steinhoff - 179760 41 040 220 800
- 718 200 164 160 882 360
All initial offers were at nominal value, subsequent offers were at 540 cents and at 528 cents per share
respectively.
The deferred delivery date is three years from the above offer date, maturing at 20% per annum.
The rights disclosed above reflect the balance of unmatured rights at year end.
2005 2004
R’000 R’000
Remuneration
Paid by:
s Company 2 281 1220
* Subsidiary companies 34 817 21 364
37 098 22 584
1.3 Fees paid for services
* Managerial: Fees 7417 3714
1.4 Net foreign exchange profit
¢ Foreign exchange on monetary items 15 889 112 953
1.5 Depreciation
*  Computer equipment 3 4
1.6 Profit on disposal of subsidiaries
¢ Steinhoff Africa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited 3 035 360 -
e Steinhoff M6bel Holdings Alpha GmbH 8 144 895 -
11 180 355 -
2. FINANCE COSTS
Interest paid
e Loans 11 479 9472
¢ Bank overdrafts 2330 7 966
* Receiver of Revenue 17 24
¢ RMB Puttable Bonds 4 690 18 251
18 516 35713




STEINHOFF INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

for the year ended 30 June 2005

2005 2004
R’000 R’000
3. INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS
Dividends received 238 626 31028
Interest received 27 113 38 015
e Group companies 26 931 37 889
e Other 182 126
265 739 69 043
4. TAXATION
4.1 Taxation (charge)/credit
Current year:
* South African current taxation (2 479) (2 703)
* South African deferred taxation {1377) {5 454)
(3 856) (8 157)
Adjustment to prior year’s taxation:
¢ South African current taxation 95 65
e South African deferred taxation - (65)
95 -
Secondary tax on companies:
e Current year - (342)
(3 761) (8 499)
4.2 Reconciliation of rate of taxation % %
South African normal tax rate 29,00 30,00
Adjusted for;
Non-taxable income (28,90) (7,80)
Non-deductible expenses - 0,20
Secondary tax on companies - 0,29
Unprovided temporary differences (0,07) (20,13)
Unutilised STC credit - (1,30)
Prior year STC credit utilised - 5,86
Prior year adjustment - (0,05)
Deferred taxation raised on prior year - 0,05
Effective tax rate 0,03 7,12
5. EQUIPMENT
Opening Closing -
balance Additions Disposals balance
Cost R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Computer equipment 27 - - 27
Opening Current Closing
balance year Disposals balance
Accumulated depreciation R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Computer equipment (15) 3) - (18)
2005 2004
Net book value R’000 R’000
Computer equipment 9 12

Equipment is insured at the approximate cost of replacement.
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for the year ended 30 June 2005

2005 2004
R’000 R’'000
6. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Shares at cost less amounts written off 11 215 245 34 329
Loans to subsidiaries™ 4 248 204 4 067 492
Investment in subsidiaries 15 463 449 4101 821
The company’s principal subsidiary is Interest of holding company
Issued Effective Shares
share shareholding at cost Net loans
capital (%) R’000 R’000
2005
Steinhoff Investment Holdings Limited R75 000 100 11 215 245 249 439
2004
Steinhoff Africa Holdings
(Proprietary) Limited R35 700 100 34 096 702 476
Steinhoff Mébel Holdings Alpha GmbH €35 790 100 233 3365016
34 329 4 067 492
*Included in loans to subsidiaries as at 30 June 2005 are amounts receivable from subsidiaries in which direct and
indirect interests were previously held. These subsidiaries are now wholly owned subsidiaries of Steinhoff Investment
Holdings Limited.
Included in those loans to indirect wholly owned subsidiaries as at 30 June 2005 is an amount of
€28 861 546 which bears interest at Euribor plus 2%. The interest rate charged during the year ranged
from 4,0% to 4,2%.
The company has subordinated its loans owing by:
¢ Steinhoff Africa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited in favour of all other creditors.
¢ Steinhoff Europe AG (Austria), amounting to €220 000 000.
¢ Steinhoff Mdbel Holdings Alpha GmbH amounting to €56 328 000 until the senior debt has been
unconditionally and irrevocably paid and discharged in full.
2005 2004
R’000 R’'000
7. LOANS RECEIVABLE
Steinhoff International Share Trust 37 723 65 563
The loan is repayable when employees exercise their share
options and is interest free.
8. DEFERRED TAXATION ASSET
8.1 Deferred taxation movement
Asset
Balance at beginning of year 1533 7 052
Prior year adjustment - (65)
Current year charge (1377) (5 454)
156 1533
8.2 Deferred taxation balances
Asset
Provision for taxation on temporary
differences resulting from:
s Unrecognised STC credit 156 1533
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

for the year ended 30 June 2005

2005 2004
R’000 R'000
9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Amounts due from subsidiary and group companies 51122 18 150
Other amounts due 3 180
51 125 18 330
10. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM
10.1 Authorised
1 500 000 000 (2004: 1 500 000 000) ordinary
shares of 0,5 cents each 7 500 7 500
10.2 Issued
1 134 695 535 (2004: 1 133 198 765) ordinary
shares of 0,5 cents each 5673 5 666
Share premium 3218 772 3221163
Total issued share capital and premium 3 224 445 3 226 829
10.3 Movement of share capital and premium
Opening balance 3 226 829 2 291 277
Movement for the year (2 384) 935 552
Shares issued for cash - 971 083
Shares issued to share trust on loan account 7 15223
Capitalisation dividend issued - 163 650
Capitalisation issue debited to share premium - (163 650)| -
Listing expenses (2 391) (50 754)
Closing balance 3 224 445 3 226 829
10.4 Unissued shares
Number of shares 365 304 465 366 801 235
The directors are authorised, by resolution of the shareholders and
until the forthcoming annual general meeting, to dispose of the
unissued shares, subject to the listing requirements of the JSE
relating to a general authority of directors to issue shares for cash.
10.5 Share scheme rights:
Rights allocated at 30 June (number of shares) 14 489 959 24 175 344
The above rights were issued in terms of the Steinhoff
International Share Trust and other share incentive schemes.
10.6 Scheme rights. 37 022 506 35 254 251

The Share Incentive Scheme was approved at the annual general
meeting which was held on 1 December 2003. Originally 35 254 251
rights were allocated on 1 December 2003.

During the year a number of rights lapsed and certain adjustments
and corrections were effected, resulting in a net reduction of 255 218
rights from the rights granted on 1 December 2003. A further

2 023 473 rights were allocated during the year.

At year end, 145 employees were participants under this scheme.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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10.

SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM (continued)

2005
R’000

2004
R’000

10.7

Disclosure requirements in terms of the

Steinhoff International Share Trust deed

s Number of shares reserved for the scheme
remaining unissued

¢ Number of shares sold by the trust to
beneficiaries during the year

¢ Number of shares available for sale by
the trustees to proposed participants

103 469 553
7 677 332

628 974

73 919 661
10 077 463

628 974

11.

RESERVES
Retained income

The accumulated distributable reserves, if declared as a cash
dividend, would be subject to secondary tax on companies

11 335 015

132 136

12.

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Unsecured financing

Rand Merchant Bank Limited

Calyon Corporate and Investment Bank

The senior unsecured RMB putiable bonds amounting to
€37 500 000 were acquired by a group company during
the year. Interest was payable semi-annually in arrears in
equal instalments at 6,94% effective interest rate. These
bonds were originally issued at a discount of 16,3%.

The Calyon term loan bears interest rate at JIBOR + 1%,
payable quarterly in arrears. The term loan is repayable at
maturity on 30 June 2010.

250 000

244 241

250 000

244 241

13.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Payables and amounts due
Amounts due by subsidiary companies

3 584
573 201

8 882
574 027

576 785

582 209

14.
14.1

14.2

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Borrowing facilities

In terms of the articles of association, the borrowing powers of the company are unlimited.

Sureties and subordinations

Unrestricted suretyship in favour of Standard Bank of South Africa for the banking facilities of Steinhoff

group companies.

Senior unsecured guaranteed registered bonds of R1 000 million at 10,0% interest payable semi-annually
in arrears on 28 February and 31 August of each year commencing on 28 February 2004 provided that
the last date for such payment shall be on 28 February 2008. These bonds are unconditionally
and irrevocably guaranteed, jointly and severally by Steinhoff Africa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited and

Steinhoff International Holdings Limited.
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14.

14.3

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENGIES (continued)

Guarantee by Steinhoff International Holdings in favour of First Rand Bank Limited for the obligations
of Steinhoff Africa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited promissory notes issued for the minimum licence fee
obligation by Steinhoff Africa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited signed as co-principal debtor by Steinhoff
International Holdings Limited and Steinhoff Manufacturing (Proprietary) Limited. Steinhoff International
and Steinhoff Manufacturing (Proprietary) Limited irrevocably and unconditionally guarantee in favour
of First Rand Bank Limited the performance of all Steinhoff Africa (Proprietary) Limited obligations
under the Head of Agreement, the Licence Agreement, the Sale Agreement and the Put Agreement.

Details regarding subordinated loans owing by subsidiaries are disclosed in note 6.
Contingent liabilities

There is no litigation, current or pending, which is considered likely to have a material adverse effect
on the company.

15.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Treasury risk management

Senior executives meet on a regular basis to analyse currency and interest rate exposures and re-
evaluate treasury management strategies against revised economic forecast.

Foreign currency management
The writing of option contracts is prohibited; currency options are only purchased as a cost-effective
alternative to forward currency contracts.

Liquidity risk management
The company continuously manages its liquidity risk, which is evidenced by its liquid resources and
partially used borrowing facilities.

Concentration of credit risk

Potential concentrations of credit risk consist principally of short-term cash and cash equivalents and
accounts receivable. The company deposits short-term cash surpluses with major banks of high
quality credit standing. Accounts receivable comprise largely of amounts due on which there does not
exist a significant credit risk. At 30 June 2005, the company did not consider there to be any significant
concentration of credit risk, which had not been adequately provided for. The amounts presented in
the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the company’s
management based on prior experience and the current economic environment.

Fair value of financial instruments

The company’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash at bank and cash equivalents, loans due to
the company, accounts and other receivables, accounts and other payables and long and short-term
liabilities.

The estimated net fair values at 30 June 2005 have been determined using available market information
and appropriate valuation methodologies, but are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the
company could realise in the normal course of business.
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2005 2004
R’000 R’000

16. CASH (UTILISED IN)/GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation 11 456 273 119 289

Adjusted for:

Depreciation of equipment 3 4

Investment income (265 739) {69 043)

Finance costs 18 516 35713

Profit on disposal of subsidiaries (11 180 355) -

Operating profit before working capital changes 28 698 85 963

Working capital changes:

Increase in accounts receivable (35 182) (16 222)

{Decrease)/increase in accounts payable (6 270) 533 764

Decrease in VAT receivable 76 -

Net changes in working capital (41 376) 517 542

Cash (utilised in)/generated from operations (12 678) 603 505
17. TAXATION PAID

Taxation (payable)/receivable at beginning of year (1 799) 461

Current taxation expense per income statement (2 384) (2 280)

Taxation (receivable)/payable at end of year (1 396) 1799

Net taxation paid (5 579) (720)
18. NET DECREASE/(INCREASE) IN LOANS RECEIVABLE

Decrease/(increase) in loans receivable 27 840 (56 557)

Shares issued on Steinhoff International Share Trust loan account 7 15 223

Distribution from Steinhoff International Share Trust not yet received 1 261 -

Net decrease/(increase) in loans receivable 29 108 (41 334)
19. NET CASH FLOW ON ISSUE OF SHARE CAPITAL

Share capital and share premium issued for cash - 971 083

Less: Issue expenses paid (4) (50 754)

Proceeds on issue of share capital 4) 920 329
20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances

with banks as well as near-cash instruments. Bank overdrafts are

only included where the company has a legal right of offset due to

cash management arrangements. Cash and cash equivalents

included in the cash flow statement comprise the following

balance sheet amounts:

Bank balances and cash 68 312 504
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21.

21.1

21.2

21.3

18

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party relationships exist between the company, shareholders and subsidiaries. These
transactions are concluded at arm’s length in the normal course of business and include transactions
as a result of the groupwide treasury management of foreign currency movements.

Subsidiaries
Details of investments in principal subsidiaries are disclosed in note 6.

Interests of directors in contracts

All directors and officers of the company have, other than described below, confirmed that they had
no interest in any contract of significance with the company or any of its subsidiary companies, which
could have resulted in a conflict of interest during the year.

During the year under review, contracts were concluded by subsidiary companies with:

* Mayfair Speculators (Proprietary) Limited (Mayfair) (of which MJ Jooste is a director) placed funds
in a call account with group companies. At year end, all deposits were repaid. During the year,
interest in the amount of approximately R1,7 million was paid to Mayfair in respect of these
deposits.

* BCM Holdings (Proprietary) Limited (BCM) (of which CE Daun is a director) and its subsidiary and
associate companies provided springs and bedding components to various group companies
totalling approximatefy R69 million.

¢ At 30 June 2005, the group had an investment in A ordinary shares in BCM Holdings amounting to
R52 million. In terms of the dividend formula relating to the shares, an amount of R9,8 million has
been accrued and remains outstanding at 30 June 2005. In addition, the group extended a loan to
BCM during the year, on which market-related interest was earned. The loan was repaid prior to
the year end.

* Hoffman Attorneys (of which SJ Grobler is a partner) provided legal services to subsidiary companies
in the amount of approximately R1,3 million.

e PSG Capital Limited and associated companies (of which JM Mouton and MJ Jooste are directors)
acted as sponsor and advisor to the group as well as to Unitrans Limited in respect of which fees
were paid totalling approximately R6,3 million.

All the contracts were concluded at arm’s length in the normal course of business at market-related
terms no more favourable than to any third party.

Related interests of directors and officers in share capital
Details have been included in the directors’ report.




STEINHOFF INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

to the members of Steinhoff Investment Holdings Limited

Introduction

We have audited the annual financial statements of Steinhoff Investment Holdings Limited, set out on pages
19 o 29 for the year ended 30 June 2005. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s
directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Scope

We conducted our audit in accordance with statements of South African Auditing Standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements are
free of material misstatement.

An audit includes:

* examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;
¢ assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and

¢ evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Audit opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position of the
company at 30 June 2005 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and in the manner
required by the Companies Act in South Africa.

Clas - 7.

Chartered Accountants (SA)
Registered Accountants and Auditors
Pretoria

12 September 2005

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

for the year ended 30 June 2005

The directors have pleasure in presenting the annual financial statements of the company for the year ended
30 June 2005.

NATURE OF BUSINESS

Steinhoff Investment Holdings Limited (“Steinhoff investment”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Steinhoff
International Holdings (Steinhoff) and is incorporated in South Africa. The company’s name was changed
from Inzuzo Industries (Proprietary} Limited to Steinhoff Investment Holdings Limited and was converted to
a public company on 20 April 2005. Steinhoff Investment is currently the investment holding company for ali
of the Steinhoff group’s investments.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Effective
Issued share shareholding
capital (%)
Steinhoff Africa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited and its subsidiaries R35 700 100
Steinhoff Mébel Holdings Alpha GmbH and its subsidiaries €35 790 100
SHARE CAPITAL

The company increased its authorised ordinary share capital during the year from 120 ordinary shares of
200 cents each to R505 000 divided into 101 000 000 ordinary shares of 0,5 cents each.
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The following ordinary shares were issued during the year:

Number
Date of shares
22 April 2005 452 000
9 June 2005 12 200 000
30 June 2005 2 300 000

The shares of the company are held by 7 sharehoiders, 6 shares of which are held by members of executive
management of Steinhoff International Holdings Limited who each holds 1 share as nominee for and on behalf
of Steinhoff International Holdings Limited. The company is therefore effectively a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Steinhoff International Holdings Limited.

The company increased its authorised preference share capital during the year from none to R495 000
divided into 495 000 000 variable rate, cumulative, non-redeemable, non-participating preference shares of
0,1 cents each of which 6 500 000 shares were issued on 15 June 2005.

CONTRACTS
No contracts in which directors and officers of the company had an interest and that significantly affected
the affairs or business of the company were entered into during the year.

DIRECTORATE

The executive directors in office at the financial year-end and date of this report, were:
Stephanus Johannes Grobler

Johannes Henoch Neethling van der Merwe

The non-executive directors in office at the financial year-end and date of this report were:
Dirk Emil Ackerman®

Dr Deenadayalen Konar*
* Independent non-executive directors

During the financial year the following directors resigned:
Jan Lodewikus Pretorius 25 February 2005
Johannes Fredericus Mouton 20 April 2005

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDING

At 30 June 2005 the present directors of the company held direct and indirect interests in 2 (2004: nil) of the
company’s issued ordinary shares as nominees for and on behalf of Steinhoff International Holdings Limited
as well as 1 000 of the company’s issued preference shares. Details of these holdings are as follows:

Johannes Henoch Neethling van der Merwe (as nominee) 1 ordinary share
Stephanus Johannes Grobler (as nominee) 1 ordinary share
Dirk Emil Ackerman 1 000 preference shares

There have been no changes to directors’ shareholding between year-end and the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The company complies with the JSE Limited {JSE) Listing Requirements and in all material respects with the
Code of Corporate Practice and Conduct published in the King ll Report on Corporate Governance.

POST-BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
There have been no subsequent events affecting Steinhoff Investment Holdings Limited.

SECRETARY

Stephanus Johannes Grobler acts as secretary to the company.
BUSINESS ADDRESS POSTAL ADDRESS
28 Sixth Street PO Box 1955
Wynberg Bramley
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STEINHOFF INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

for the year ended 30 June 2005

GROUP ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Steinhoff Investments is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Steinhoff International Holdings Limited (Steinhoff),
except for the 6 500 000 variable rate, cumulative, non-redeemable, non-participating preference shares with
a par value of 0,1 cent each in the capital of Steinhoff Investments, issued at total premium of R649,9 million.
The preference shares were listed on the JSE Limited on 15 June 2005. With effect from 1 May 2005,
Steinhoff Investments acquired the entire issued share capital held by Steinhoff in its two main operating
subsidiaries, Steinhoff Mobel Holdings Alpha GmbH and Steinhoff Africa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited and
as such, Steinhoff Investments became the intermediate wholly-owned holding company for all of Steinhoff’s
investments. Had the acquisition been effective on 1 July 2004, the relevant financial information of Steinhoff
and Steinhoff Investments for the year ended 30 June 2005 would have been identical. However, no
consolidated financial statements for Steinhoff Investments have been prepared in respect of the two month
period ended 30 June 2005, but preference shareholders are referred to the consolidated financial results of
Steinhoff for a full appreciation of the consolidated results and financial position on the basis of a full twelve-
month reporting period.

APPROVAL OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

It is the directors’ responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs
of the company. The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the
financial statements.

The directors are also responsible for the systems of internal control. These are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the reliability of the financial statements, and to adequately
safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of assets, and to prevent and detect material misstatement and
loss. The systems are implemented and monitored by suitably trained personnel with an appropriate
segregation of authority and duties. Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that any
material breakdown in the functioning of these controls, procedures and systems has occurred during the
year under review.

The financial statements set out in this report have been prepared by management on the basis of
appropriate accounting policies which have been consistently applied and which are supported by prudent
judgements and estimates. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African
Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.

The directors have reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operation
for the foreseeable future, and the annual financial statements have therefore been prepared on a going
concern basis.

The annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005, which appear on pages 19 to 29 were
approved by the board and signed on its behalf on 12 September 2005.

Stephanus Johannes Grobler Johannes Henoch Neethling van der Merwe
Executive Director Executive Director

Secretary certification

I certify, in accordance with Section 268 G(d) of the Companies Act, 1973, as amended (“the Act”) that the
company has lodged with the Registrar of Companies all such returns as are required for a public company
in terms of the Act and that all such returns are true, correct and up to date.

Stephanus Johannes Grobler
Company Secretary




STEINHOFF INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 30 June 2005

Notes 2005

R’000

Operating loss 1 (51)
Taxation 2 -
Loss after taxation (51)

Comparative income statement information is not presented as the company was dormant in the prior financial year.

BALANCE SHEET

as at 30 June 2005

Notes 2005 2004
R’000 R’000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Interest in subsidiary companies 3 12 113 684 -
Investments 4 180 000 -
Loans due by group entities - *
TOTAL ASSETS 12 293 684 *
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Ordinary share capital and premium 5 11 215 245 *
Reserves 7 (51) -
Ordinary shareholders’ equity 11 215 194 *
Preference share capital and premium 6 643 878 -
Total equity 11 859 072
Non-current liabilities
Loans due to group entities 8 432 937 -
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 9 1674 -
Bank overdraft 1 -
1675 -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 12 293 684 *

* Amounts less than R1 000




STEINHOFF INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 30 June 2005

Ordinary Total Preference
share ordinary share
capital and Accumulated shareholders’ capital and Total
premium loss equity premium equity
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Balance at 30 June 2004
and 2003 * - * - *
Loss for the year - (51) (51) - (51)
Issue of share capital 11 215 245 - 11 215 245 643 878 11 859 123
Balance at 30 June 2005 11 215 245 (51) 11215194 643 878 11 859 072
* Amounts less than R1 000
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 30 June 2005
Notes 2005
R’000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash utilised in operations 12 (1)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (1)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net increase in amounts due by subsidiaries 13 (650 000)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (650 000)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds on issue of ordinary share capital 14 -
Proceeds on issue of preference share capital 15 650 000
Net cash inflow from financing activities 650 000

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

(1)

(1)

Comparative cash flow information is not presented as the company was dormant in the prior financial year.




STEINHOFF INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

for the year ended 30 June 2005

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with South African Statements of Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice on the historical cost basis and going concern principle except for certain
financial instruments which are carried at fair value or amortised cost as appropriate, and incorporate the
following principal accounting policies which have been consistently applied in all material respects, except
where otherwise stated.

Presentation of financial statements
These financial statements are presented in South African Rands and are for the twelve-month period ended
30 June 2005.

Unless otherwise stated, all amounts in the annual financial statements are shown rounded off to the nearest
R1 000.

Interest in subsidiary companies
Interest in subsidiary companies is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of assets stated in the balance sheet are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated as the higher of the net selling price and its value in use. An impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement whenever the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

in assessing value in use, the expected future cash flows are discounted to their present value that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that
does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

A previously recognised impairment loss is only reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount; however, not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of depreciation and amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised in
previous years.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash and bank and near-cash financial instruments. Bank overdrafts
are only included where the company has a legal right of of'fset due to cash management arrangements.
Refer to policies on financial instruments below.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences
arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding basis used in the computation of taxable income. In general, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of other assets and liabilities, which affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit at the
time of the transaction. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefits will be realised.

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement except when it relates to items credited or
charged directly in equity, in which case deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Revenue recognition

Interest

Interest revenue is recognised on a time-proportion basis by reference to the principal debt outstanding and
at the interest rate applicable.




STEINHOFF INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

for the year ended 30 June 2005

Dividend income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive payment has been established.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the company’s balance sheet when the company
becomes a party to contractual provisions of the instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments
are measured as set out below.

Financial assets
The company’s principal financial assets are investments and loans receivable.

Investments
Investments in preference shares are classified as available-for-sale investments and are measured at fair
value.

For available-for-sale investments, unrealised gains and losses are dealt with in equity, until the security is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time the net profit or loss is included in the net profit
or loss for the period.

Loans receivable
Loans receivables originated by the company are stated at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities
The company’s principal financial liabilities are loans due to group entities, accounts payable and bank
borrowings:

Loans due to group entities
Interest-bearing loans are recognised at amortised cost, namely original debt less principal payments and
amortisations.

Bank overdraft

Bank borrowings, consisting of interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs. Finance costs, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption,
are accounted for on an accrual basis and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent
that they are not settled in the period in which they arise.

Accounts payable
Trade and other payables are stated at amortised cost. Due {o the short-term nature of the company’s trade
and other payables, the cost approximates its fair value.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

De-recognition

Financial assets (or a portion thereof) are de-recognised when the company realises the rights to the benefits
specified in the contract, the rights expire or the company surrenders or otherwise loses control of the
contractual rights that comprise the financial asset. On de-recognition, the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and proceeds receivable and any prior adjustment to reflect fair value that had
been reported in equity are included in the profit and loss for the period.

Financial liabilities (or a portion thereof) are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. On de-recognition, the difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability, including related unamortised costs, and amount paid for it are included in profit and loss
for the period.

(o] 4




STEINHOFF INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinued)

for the year ended 30 June 2005

Fair value methods and assumptions
The fair values of financial instruments traded in an organised financial market are measured at the applicable
quoted prices, adjusted for any transaction costs necessary to realise the assets or settle the fiabilities.

The fair value of financial instruments not traded in an organised financial market, is determined using a
variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risk existing at balance sheet
date, including independent appraisals and discounted cash flow methods. The fair value determined is
adjusted for any transaction costs necessary to realise the assets or settle the liabilities.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to
approximate their fair values due to the short-term trading cycle of these items.

Offset

Where a legally-enforceable right of offset exists for recognised financial assets and financial liabilities, and
there is an intention to settle the tiability and realise the asset simultaneously, or to settle on a net basis, all
related financial effects are offset.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2005

2005 2004
R’000 R*000
1. OPERATING LOSS
Operating loss is stated after taking account of the following item:
1.1 Auditors’ remuneration
e Audit fees 50 -
2. TAXATION
At balance sheet date, the company had an unutilised calculated
taxation loss available to offset against future taxable income.
A deferred tax asset has not been raised as the directors are of the
opinion that it is not probable that sufficient future taxable profit will
be available against which tax losses can be utilised.
3. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Shares at cost 11 214 684 -
Loans to subsidiaries 899 000 -
Investment in subsidiaries 12 113 684 -
The company’s principal subsidiaries are Interest of holding company
Issued Effective Shares
share shareholding at cost Net loans
capital (%) R’000 R’000
Steinhoff Africa Holdings (Proprietary)
Limited and its subsidiaries R35 700 100 3 069 456 899 000
Steinhoff Mobel Holdings Alpha GmbH
and its subsidiaries €35 790 100 8 145 228 -
11 214 684 899 000

The company has subordinated its [cans
owing by Steinhoff Africa Holdings
{Proprietary) Limited amounting to
R650 000 000 in favour of all

other creditors.




STEINHOFF INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2005

2005 2004
R’000 R’000
4, INVESTMENTS
Unlisted investments — preference shares 180 000 -~
Directors’ valuation of unlisted investments 180 000 -
Details of investments are available at the
registered office of the company for inspection.
Unlisted investments are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets.
5. ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM
5.1 Authorised
101 000 000 (2004: 120) ordinary shares
of 0,5 (2004: 200) cents each 505 *
5.2 lIssued
15 000 000 (2004: 120) ordinary shares
of 0,5 (2004: 200) cents each ' 75 *
Share premium 11 215170 -
Total issued share capital and premium 11 215 245 *
5.3 Movement of share capital and premium
Opening balance * *
Movement for the year ' 11 215 245 -
Shares issued to Steinhoff International Holdings Limited L11 215 245 —J
Closing balance 11 215 245 *
The authorised but unissued ordinary shares will be
under the control of the directors until Steinhoff
Investment’s next Annual General Meeting, subject
to the provisions of the Companies Act.
* Amounts less than R1 000
6. PREFERENCE SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM
6.1 Authorised
495 000 000 (2004: nil) variable rate, cumulative,
non-redeemable, non-participating preference
shares of 0,1 cents each 495 -
6.2 Issued
6 500 000 (2004: nil} variable rate, cumulative,
non-redeemable, non-participating preference
shares of 0,1 cents each 7 -
Share premium 649 993 -
Preliminary expenses (6 122) -
Total issued preference share capital and premium 643 878 -

At a general meeting of Steinhoff Investment Holdings Limited shareholders approved the ordinary
resolution whereby the preference shares were placed under the control of the directors of the
company who are authorised to allot and issue the preference shares at their discretion, subject to the
provisions of section 221 and 222 of the Companies Act and the JSE Listing requirements.

The authorised but unissued preference shares, after the listing, will be under the control of the
directors until Steinhoff Investment’s next Annual General Meeting, subject to the provisions of the
Companies Act and the Listing requirements.




STEINHOFF INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

for the year ended 30 June 2005

2005 2004
R’000 R’000
7. RESERVES
Accumulated loss (51) -
8. LOANS DUE TO GROUP ENTITIES
Long-term loans due to:
Steinhoff International Holdings Limited 249 439 -
PG Bison Holdings (Proprietary) Limited 150 000 -
Steinhoff Manufacturing (Proprietary) Limited
and other fellow subsidiaries 33 498 -
432 937 -
The amounts owing to group entities are interest
free and have not fixed terms of repayment.
9. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Trade payables 1674 -
10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
10.1 Borrowing facilities
In terms of the articles of association, the borrowing powers of the company are unlimited.
10.2 Sureties and subordinations
Details regarding loans to subsidiaries are disclosed in note 3.
10.3 Contingent liabilities
There is no litigation, current or pending, which is considered likely to have a material adverse effect
on the company.
11. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Treasury risk management
Senior executives meet on a regular basis to analyse currency and interest rate exposures and re-
evaluate treasury management strategies against revised economic forecast.

Liquidity risk management
The company continuously manages its liquidity risk. The company is not significantly exposed to
liquidity risk.

Concentration of credit risk
At 30 June 2005, the company did not consider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk,
which had not been adequately provided for.

Fair value of financial instruments
The company’s financial instruments consist mainly of loans due by and due to group entities, accounts
payables and bank overdraft.

The estimated net fair values at which financial instruments are carried on the balance sheet at 30 June
2005 have been determined using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies,
but are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the company could realise in the normal course
of business.




STEINHOFF INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2005

2005
R’000

12. CASH UTILISED IN OPERATIONS

Operating loss (51)

Working capital changes:

Increase in accounts payable 1674

Cost paid by group companies included in

accounts payable (1 624)

Net changes in working capital 50

Cash utilised in operations (1)
13. NET INCREASE IN INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Increase in investments in subsidiaries {12 113 684)

Funded by the following non-cash flow transactions:

Issue of ordinary share capital received through

loan account 11 215 245

Long-term loans granted by related parties 432 937

Purchase of investment (180 000)

Listing expenses paid by group companies through

loan account (4 498)

Total increase in investment in subsidiaries (650 000)
14. PROCEEDS ON ISSUE OF ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

Total increase in ordinary share capita! 11 215 245

Non-cash consideration received through loans account (11 215 245)

Proceeds on issue of ordinary share capital -
15. PROCEEDS ON ISSUE OF PREFERENCE SHARE CAPITAL

Total preference share capital issued for cash 643 878

Listing expenses paid by group companies 6 122

Proceeds on issue of preference share capital 650 000
16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party relationships exist between shareholders and subsidiaries. These transactions are
concluded at arm’s length in the normal course of business and include transactions as a result of the
group wide treasury management of foreign currency movements. For detailed disclosure refer to the
Steinhoff International Holdings Limited Group financial statements.

16.1 Subsidiaries
Details of investments in principal subsidiaries are disclosed in note 3.

16.2 Interests of directors in contracts
All directors of the company have confirmed that they did not have any material interests in any
contract of significance with the company, which could have resulted in a conflict of interest during the
year.

16.3 Related interests of directors and officers in share capital
Details have been included in the directors’ report,



